

ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA OFFICE OF THE PURCHASING AGENT 2100 CLARENDON BOULEVARD, SUITE 500 ARLINGTON, VA 22201 (703) 228-3410

INVITATION TO BID NO. 21-DPR-ITB-467

TOWERS PARK PLAYGROUND RENOVATIONS

ELECTRONIC SEALED BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED BY ARLINGTON COUNTY VIA <u>VENDOR REGISTRY</u> UNTIL 1:00 P.M. ON THE 19TH DAY OF MARCH 2021. REGISTRATION IS NOT REQUIRED TO DOWNLOAD THE ITB. IN <u>ORDER TO SUBMIT A RESPONSE TO THIS ITB, REGISTRATION IS REQUIRED</u>. NO RESPONSES WILL BE ACCEPTED AFTER THE BID DUE DATE AND TIME.

THERE IS A NON-MANDATORY VIRTUAL PREBID CONFERENCE ON MARCH 1, 2021 AT 1:00 P.M.

<u>Click here to join the Non-Mandatory Prebid Conference via Microsoft Teams meeting</u> +1 347-973-6905, 813674612#, United States, New York City (Toll) Conference ID: 813 674 612#

The Prebid Conference is to allow potential Bidders an opportunity to obtain clarification of the specifications and requirements of the solicitation. ATTENDANCE IS OPTIONAL. Minutes of the pre-bid conference will be recorded by the County and will be incorporated into the solicitation documents through an Addendum. Interested Bidders are encouraged to attend.

The County will conduct a virtual bid opening via Microsoft Teams Application (APP). Bidders interested in viewing the public bid opening must download the APP and join the meeting via the Microsoft Teams APP and enable audio, video or both. The link to join the public bid opening is provided below:

PUBLIC BID OPENING ON MARCH 19, 2021 AT 1:00 P.M.

<u>Click here to join the Public Bid Opening via Microsoft Teams meeting</u> +1 347-973-6905, 995755538# United States, New York City (Toll) Conference ID: 995 755 538#

Bid Surety in the amount of 5% of the bid must be submitted with the bid. Performance and Payment Bonds in the amount of 100% of the award will be required of the successful bidder.

NOTE: THIS INVITATION TO BID REQUIRES PROVISION OF BRAND NAME ITEMS. SUBSTITUTIONS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

- KOMPAN
 - 1. Jellyfish Tower (COROCORD19-0098-2C1)
 - 2. Net Twister (1G110 COR203001-1101)
- Berliner, Inc.
 - 1. Woodville Towers (USP0360800)



- Sparks @ Play
 - 1. GFRC Rock Climber (1142042-01-05)
- Playworld
 - 1. Double Bay Single Post Swing Frame (ZZXX0818,0819)
 - 2. Bucket Swing seat (ZZXX0265)
 - 3. Belt Swing Seat (ZZXX0260)

NOTICE: ANY BIDDER ORGANIZED AS A STOCK OR NONSTOCK CORPORATION, LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY, BUSINESS TRUST OR LIMITED PARTNERSHIP, OR REGISTERED AS A LIMITED LIABILITY PARTNERSHIP, MUST BE AUTHORIZED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN THE COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA PRIOR TO SUBMITTING A BID (REFER TO <u>AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS</u> SECTION IN THE SOLICITATION FOR FURTHER INFORMATION).

Arlington County reserves the right to reject any and all bids, cancel this solicitation, and waive any informalities or irregularities as defined in the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution.

Arlington County, Virginia Office of the Purchasing Agent

Tomeka Price, VCO, VCA County Purchasing Agent tprice@arlingtonva.us

TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS	4
II.	SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIFICATIONS	. 13
III.	AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS	. 15
IV.	ARLINGTON COUNTY DPR CONSTRUCTION GENERAL CONDITIONS	. 28
V.	INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS	. 55
VI.	ATTACHMENTS AND FORMS	. 64
	BID FORM	. 65
	ATTACHMENT A - PRICING SHEET	
	ATTACHMENT B – TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS	
	ATTACHMENT C – CONSTRUCTION DRAWINGS/PLANS	

I. INFORMATION FOR BIDDERS

1. QUESTIONS AND ADDENDA

BIDDERS MUST BE REGISTERED IN VENDOR REGISTRY TO SUBMIT A QUESTION FOR THIS INVITATION TO BID (ITB).

All communications relating to this solicitation must be submitted online using Vendor Registry. For a question to be considered, the question must be entered in the Question Section of ITB No. 21-DPR-ITB-467. Prior to the award of a contract resulting from this solicitation, bidders are prohibited from contacting any County staff other than those assigned to the Office of the Purchasing Agent.

QUESTIONS REGARDING THE ORIGINAL SOLICITATION MUST BE SUBMITTED BY MARCH 4, 2021 AT 5:00 PM EASTERN TIME TO BE CONSIDERED FOR AN ADDENDUM. ALL QUESTIONS RECEIVED BY THE QUESTION DEADLINE WILL BE RESPONDED TO WITHIN VENDOR REGISTRY AND POSTED FOR ALL BIDDERS. THE SYSTEM WILL NOT ACCEPT ANY QUESTIONS AFTER THIS DATE AND TIME.

If any questions or responses require revisions to this solicitation, such revisions will be by formal Addendum only. Bidders are cautioned not to rely on any written, electronic, or oral representations made by any County representative or other person, including the County's technical contact, that appear to change any portion of the solicitation unless the change is ratified by a written Addendum to this solicitation issued by the Office of the Purchasing Agent.

2. INTEREST IN MORE THAN ONE BID AND COLLUSION

Reasonable grounds for believing that a Bidder is interested in more than one bid for a solicitation, including both as a Bidder and as a subcontractor for another Bidder, or that collusion exists between two or more Bidders, will result in rejection of all affected proposals. However, an individual or entity acting only as a subcontractor may be included as a subcontractor on bids of two or more different Bidders. Bidders rejected under the above provision will also be disqualified if they respond to a re-solicitation for the same work.

3. TRADE SECRETS OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION

Trade secrets or proprietary information that a bidder or contractor submits in connection with a procurement transaction may be exempted from public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act ("VFOIA"). However, the bidder or contractor must invoke VFOIA protection clearly and in writing on the Bid Form for County review. The Bid Form must include at least the following: (1) the data or other materials sought to be protected and (2) specific reasons why the material is confidential or proprietary. It is the bidder's sole responsibility to defend such exemptions if challenged in a court of competent jurisdiction.

4. DEBARMENT STATUS

The Bidder must indicate on the Bid Form whether it or any of its principals is currently debarred from submitting bids to the County or to any other state or political subdivision and whether the Bidder is an agent of any person or entity that is currently debarred from submitting bids to the County or to any other state or political subdivision. An affirmative response may be considered grounds for rejection of the bid.

5. <u>AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS</u>

Any Bidder organized as a stock or nonstock corporation, limited liability company, business trust, or limited partnership or registered as a registered limited liability partnership must be authorized to

transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia as a domestic or foreign business entity if so, required by Title 13.1 or Title 50 of the Code of Virginia, or as otherwise required by law. The proper and full legal name of the entity and the identification number issued to the Bidder by the Virginia State Corporation Commission must be included on the Bid Form. Any Bidder that is not required to be authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth must include in its proposal a statement describing why the Bidder is not required to be so authorized. The County may require a Bidder to provide documentation that 1) clearly identifies the complete name and legal form of the entity and 2) establishes that the entity is authorized by the State Corporation Commission to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia. Failure of a Bidder to provide such documentation will be a ground for rejection of the bid or cancellation of any award. For further information refer to the Commonwealth of Virginia State Corporation Commission website at: www.scc.virginia.gov.

6. ARLINGTON COUNTY BUSINESS LICENSES

The successful Bidder must comply with the provisions of Chapter 11 ("Licenses") of the Arlington County Code, if applicable. For information on the provisions of that Chapter and its applicability to this solicitation, contact the Arlington County Business License Division, Office of the Commissioner of the Revenue, at 2100 Clarendon Blvd., Suite 200, Arlington, Virginia, 22201, tel. (703) 228-3060, or e-mail mailto: <u>business@arlingtonva.us</u>.

7. BID FORM SUBMISSION

The submitted Bid Form must be signed and fully executed. The Bid Form must be submitted electronically via Vendor Registry no later than the date and time specified in this solicitation. The Vendor Registry system will not accept bids after the close date and time. The County will not accept emailed or faxed bid

The Bidder name on the electronic bid submittal shall be the same as the Contractor/Vendor name as the registration in Vendor Registry for the upload to be considered a valid bid. ONLY ELECTRONIC SUBMISSION IS ALLOWED, NO BID SUBMITTED OTHER THAN A VENDOR REGISTRY ELECTRONIC UPLOAD WILL BE ACCEPTED. Arlington County is not responsible for late submissions, missed Addendums, or questions not submitted before the end date and time.

Timely submission is solely the responsibility of the Bidder. The Vendor Registry System will not accept applications after the publicly posted date and time. A bid may be rejected if the Bid Form is not signed in the designated space by a person authorized to legally bind the Bidder.

Modification of or additions to the Bid Form may be cause for rejection of the bid; however, Arlington County reserves the right to decide, in its sole discretion, whether to reject such a bid as nonresponsive. As a precondition to bid acceptance, Arlington County may request the bidder to withdraw or modify any such modifications or additions, if it does not affect quality, quantity, price, or delivery.

Bids and all documents uploaded/submitted to Arlington County by a Bidder become the property of the County upon receipt.

8. ERRORS IN EXTENSION

If the unit price and the extension price differ, the unit price will prevail.

9. <u>EXCEPTIONS</u>

Conditional or qualified bids containing exceptions, unless specifically allowed in the solicitation, are subject to rejection in whole or in part as nonresponsive.

10. NONCONFORMING TERMS AND CONDITIONS

If a bid contains alternate terms and conditions that do not conform to the terms and conditions in this solicitation, the bid will be subject to rejection for nonresponsiveness. The County reserves the right to permit a bidder to withdraw nonconforming terms and conditions from its bid prior to the County's determination of nonresponsiveness.

11. BIDDERS' RESPONSIBILITY TO INVESTIGATE

Before submitting a bid, each bidder must make all investigations necessary to ascertain all conditions and requirements affecting the full performance of the contract and to verify any representations made by the County upon which the bidder will rely. No pleas of ignorance of such conditions and requirements will relieve the successful bidder from its obligation to comply in every detail with all provisions and requirements of the contract or will be accepted as a basis for any claim for any monetary consideration on the part of the successful bidder.

12. SITE INVESTIGATION AND CONDITIONS AFFECTING THE WORK

Each bidder is responsible for ascertaining the nature and locations of the Work of the solicitation, and for investigating the general and local conditions and factors which can affect the work or its cost, including but not limited to:

- a. conditions bearing upon transportation, disposal, handling, and storage of materials;
- b. the availability of labor, water, electric power, and roads;
- c. uncertainties of weather, river stage, tides, or similar physical conditions at the site;
- d. the conformation and conditions of the ground; and
- e. the character of equipment and facilities needed before and during work performance.

Each bidder is responsible for investigating the character, quality, and quantity of surface and subsurface materials or obstacles to be encountered insofar as this information is reasonably ascertainable from an inspection of the site, including all exploratory work publicly or otherwise available, as well as from the drawings and specifications made a part of this solicitation.

The locations of existing utilities, including underground utilities, which may affect the work are indicated on the drawings or in the specifications insofar as their existence and location were known at the time of preparation of the drawings. However, nothing in these drawings or specifications shall be construed as a guarantee that such utilities are in the location indicated or that they actually exist, or that other utilities are not within the area of operations. The bidder shall make all necessary investigations to determine the existence and locations of such utilities.

The County assumes no responsibility for any conclusions or interpretations made by the bidder based on the information made available by the County. The County assumes no responsibility for any understanding reached or representation made concerning conditions which could affect the work by any of its officers or agents before the execution of the contract, unless that understanding, or representation is expressly stated in the Contract.

13. INCOMPLETE DOCUMENTS

Each bidder is responsible for having determined the accuracy and/or completeness of the solicitation documents upon which it relied in making its bid, and has an affirmative obligation to notify the Arlington County Purchasing Agent immediately upon discovery of an apparent or suspected inaccuracy, error in,

or omission of any pages, drawings, sections, or addenda whose omission from the documents was apparent from a reference or page numbering or other indication in the solicitation documents.

If a bidder downloads an electronic version of the solicitation documents, that potential bidder is responsible for determining the accuracy and/or completeness of the electronic documents and ensuring that the electronic documents used in preparing the bid are the most current version of solicitation documents issued by the County.

If the successful bidder proceeds with any activity that may be affected by an inaccuracy, error in, or omission in the solicitation documents of which it is aware but has not notified the Arlington County Purchasing Agent, the bidder hereby agrees to perform any activity described in the missing or incomplete documents at bidder's sole expense and at no additional cost to Arlington County.

14. ERRONEOUS OR INFEASIBLE REQUIREMENTS

Each bidder is responsible for having determined the feasibility of the work required and shall notify the County Purchasing Agent immediately upon discovery of any apparent erroneous, contradictory, incomplete, or infeasible requirements or directions contained in the Solicitation Documents. If a bidder fails to notify the County of such conditions immediately upon discovery, the bidder assumes all responsibility for any and all work required to satisfy the contract requirements at no additional cost to the County and within the Time for Completion.

15. QUALIFICATION OF BIDDERS

The Purchasing Agent may require a bidder to demonstrate that it has the necessary facilities, ability, and financial resources to comply with the contract and furnish the service, material or goods specified herein in a satisfactory manner before the award of any contract. A bidder may also be required to provide past history and references. Failure to qualify according to the foregoing requirements will result in bid rejection.

16. **INFORMALITIES**

The County reserves the right to waive minor defects or variations from the exact requirements of the solicitation in a bid insofar as those defects or variations do not affect the price, quality, quantity, or delivery schedule of the services being procured. If insufficient information is submitted for Arlington County to properly evaluate a bid or a bidder; the County may request such additional information after bid opening, provided that the information requested does not change the price, quality, quantity, or delivery schedule for the services being procured.

17. USE OF BRAND NAMES/"OR EQUIVALENT" BIDS

NOTE: THIS INVITATION TO BID REQUIRES PROVISION OF BRAND NAME ITEMS. SUBSTITUTIONS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

- KOMPAN
 - 1. Jellyfish Tower (COROCORD19-0098-2C1)
 - 2. Net Twister (1G110 COR203001-1101)
- Berliner, Inc.
 - 1. Woodville Towers (USP0360800)
- Sparks @ Play
 - 1. GFRC Rock Climber (1142042-01-05)

- Playworld
 - 1. Double Bay Single Post Swing Frame (ZZXX0818,0819)
 - 2. Bucket Swing seat (ZZXX0265)
 - 3. Belt Swing Seat (ZZXX0260)

Unless identified as a "No Equivalent" item in the solicitation, the name of a certain brand, make or manufacturer does not restrict bidders to that specific brand, make or manufacturer. The use of the brand, make or manufacturer's identification is intended to convey the general type, style, character, and quality of the article described. When a brand name is specified and followed by the phrase "or approved equal," the brand name product may be substituted if a suitable equivalent considering quality, workmanship, economy of operation, and suitability for the intended us, is accepted by the County Purchasing Agent. The County may accept any equivalent item(s) that it considers suitable for the intended use.

For those items not identified as "No Equivalent", and followed by the phrase "or approved equal," the County has established the following procedure for determining the equivalency of a particular item: Bidder Submission of Proposed Equivalent Item(s):

- 1) Bidder shall submit to the County its proposed item(s) for determination of their equivalency to the Brand Name(s) specified.
- 2) Each proposed item must be described on a separate page, indicating the appropriate specification section number, product or fabrication or installation method to be replaced, and specifics of the proposed item. Attach any technical information, photographs, brochures and the relevant data listed below that supports the proposed item and will permit the County to fairly determine acceptability of the item proposed:
 - a. Reasons why the specified product cannot be provided, if applicable.
 - b. Coordination information, including a list of changes or modifications needed to other parts of the Work that will be necessary to accommodate proposed substitution.
 - c. Detailed comparison of significant qualities of proposed substitution with those of the product specified.
 - d. Product Data, including drawings and descriptions of products and fabrication and installation procedures.
 - e. Samples, where applicable or requested.
 - f. List of similar installations for completed projects with project names and addresses and names and addresses of Architects and owners, if requested.
 - g. Material test reports from a qualified testing agency indicating and interpreting test results for compliance with requirements indicated.
 - h. Statement of impact on the construction schedule. If specified product or method of construction cannot be provided within the Contract Time, include letter from manufacturer, on manufacturer's letterhead, stating lack of availability or delays in delivery.
 - i. Cost information.
 - j. Contractor's certification that proposed substitution complies with requirements in the Contract Documents and is appropriate for applications indicated.

- 3) The County will consider factors such as relative costs, equivalency of features, serviceability, the design of the item proposed, and/or pertinent performance factors as provided in the project technical specifications.
- 4) All pages of the submission shall be marked with the name, address and contact information of the bidder, and sent via email to the Office of the Purchasing Agent to arrive prior to the question deadline established in Section I., paragraph I. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION. E-mail transmittals will be accepted at <u>tprice@arlingtonva.us</u>.

County Review of Proposed Equivalent Item(s):

- 1) Approved item(s) will be added to the solicitation, in the form of an Addendum to the solicitation, and forwarded to all bidders of record.
- 2) Bidders whose item(s) have not been approved will be so advised in writing simultaneously with the issuance of the Addendum.

18. <u>NEW MATERIAL</u>

Unless otherwise provided for in this solicitation, all goods, materials, supplies, or components offered to the County under this bid solicitation must be new, not used or reconditioned, and are not of such age or so deteriorated as to impair their usefulness or safety and that the goods, materials, supplies, or components offered are current production models of the respective manufacturer. If a bidder believes that furnishing used or reconditioned goods, materials, supplies or components will be in the County's interest, the bidder shall notify the County Purchasing Agent in writing no later than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the date set for opening of bids. The notice shall include the reasons for the request and any benefits which may accrue to the County if the Purchasing Agent authorizes the bidding of used or reconditioned goods, materials, supplies or components.

19. VIRGINIA CONTRACTOR LICENSE

For all work that is classified as being performed by "Contractors" as defined by the Virginia State Board for Contractors, a Class A, B, or C License is required.

If a contract for performing or managing construction, removal, repair or improvements is for \$120,000 or more, or if the total value of all such construction, removal, repair, or improvements undertaken by the bidder within any twelve-month period is \$750,000 or more, the bidder is required under Title 54.1, Chapter 11, Code of Virginia, as amended, to be licensed as a "CLASS A CONTRACTOR."

If a contract for performing or managing construction, removal, repair or improvements is for \$10,000 or more, but less than \$120,000, or if the total value of all such construction, removal, repair, or improvements undertaken by the bidder within any twelve-month period is \$150,000 or more, but less than \$750,000, the bidder is required under Title 54.1, Chapter 11, Code of Virginia, as amended, to be licensed as a "CLASS B CONTRACTOR."

If a contract for performing construction, removal, repair or improvements is for \$1,000 or more, but no more than \$10,000 or if the total value of all such construction, removal, repair, or improvements undertaken by the bidder within any twelve-month period is less than \$150,000, the bidder is required under Title 54.1, Chapter 11, Code of Virginia, as amended, to be licensed as a "CLASS C CONTRACTOR." Class C contractors shall not include electrical, plumbing, and heating, ventilation and air conditioning contractors.

For further information, contact the State Board for Contractors, 2 South Ninth Street, Richmond, VA 23219, (804) 367-8511.

20. BID WITHDRAWAL PRIOR TO BID OPENING

The Bidder may withdraw a bid from Vendor Registry before the opening date and time. It is the sole responsibility of the Bidder to remove and/or resubmit a bid before the bid deadline.

21. WITHDRAWAL OF BID FROM CONSIDERATION AFTER BID OPENING

After the opening of a bid, a bidder may withdraw its bid from consideration if the price of the bid is substantially lower than other bids due solely to a mistake therein, provided the bid is submitted in good faith, the mistake is a clerical mistake as opposed to a judgment mistake, and is actually due to an unintentional arithmetic error or an unintentional omission of a quantity of work, labor or material made directly in the compilation of the bid, which unintentional error or unintentional omission can be clearly shown by objective evidence drawn from inspection of original work papers, documents and materials used in the preparation of the bid sought to be withdrawn. No partial withdrawals of bids will be permitted after the time and date set for the bid opening. The bidder must give an electronic written notice to the Arlington County Purchasing Agent of a claim of right to withdraw a bid and provide all work papers, documents and other materials used in the preparation of the date of bid opening. A bid may also be withdrawn if the County fails to award or issue a notice of intent to award the bid within ninety (90) days after the date fixed for opening bids.

22. METHOD OF AWARD

The County will award to the lowest responsive and responsible bidder. The lowest bidder will be determined by **"Base Lump Sum Grand Total" on Attachment A**.

23. NOTICE OF DECISION TO AWARD

When the County has made a decision to award a contract(s), the County will post a Notice of Award or Intent to Award to <u>Vendor Registry</u>.

24. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Each bidder must be able to demonstrate proof of the specific coverage requirements and limits applicable to this solicitation. If the bidder is not able to do so, it may propose alternate insurance coverage for consideration by the County. Written requests for consideration of alternate coverage must be received by the County Purchasing Agent at least 10 working days prior to bid due date. If the County permits alternate coverage, an amendment to the Insurance Checklist will be issued prior to the time and date set for receipt of bids.

25. <u>SURETY REQUIRED</u>

Companies who wish to implement digital signatures during the COVID-19 public health emergency may do so, along with a SURETY BOND SEAL ADDENDUM which contains an electronic corporate seal and states the following:

"Due to logistical issues associated with the use of traditional seals during this COVID-19 pandemic, [Surety Company] has authorized its Attorney-in-Fact to affix [Surety Company's] corporate seal to any bond executed on behalf of [Surety Company] by any such Attorney-in-Fact by attaching this Addendum to said bond.

To the extent this Addendum is attached to a bond that is executed on behalf of [Surety Company] by its Attorney-in-Facts, [Surety Company\ hereby agrees that the seal below shall be deemed affixed to said bond to the same extent as if its raised corporate seal was physically affixed to the face of the bond."

A. BID SURETY:

A fully completed and properly executed original Bid Bond, cashier's check, certified check, money order, or cash escrow in the amount of 5% of the amount of the bid made payable to the Treasurer of Arlington County shall accompany each bid. The Bid Surety will be retained until after the award to the successful bidder. The Bid Surety of the successful bidder will be retained until completion of the Contract or the posting of a Performance Bond, whichever occurs sooner. A bid submitted without a proper bid surety will be rejected.

B. FAILURE TO EXECUTE:

The failure of a bidder to accept an award and file acceptable Performance and Payment Bonds within ten (10) days after notice of intent to award will cause cancellation of the award and the forfeiture of the Bid Surety to the County.

C. <u>PERFORMANCE SURETY:</u>

A fully completed and properly executed original Performance Bond in the amount of 100% of the amount of the bid will be required of the successful bidder to ensure satisfactory completion of the work. The bond shall be a corporate surety bond issued by a surety company authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia and acceptable to the County. Where applicable, the Performance Bond shall be renewable annually in the original amount through the completion of the Contract, including all warranty and guarantee periods.

D. <u>PAYMENT BOND:</u>

A fully completed and properly executed original Payment Bond in the amount of 100% of the amount of the bid, will be required of the successful bidder to ensure payment of all persons who have and fulfill contracts for the Contractor for performing labor, providing equipment, or providing material in the performance of the work provided for in the Contract. The Bond shall be a corporate surety bond issued by a surety company authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia and acceptable to the County. Where applicable, the Payment Bond shall be renewable annually in the original amount for the duration of the Contract.

26. EXECUTION OF CONTRACT

Within three days after the Contract is presented to the successful Bidder for signature, the Contractor must submit to the County Purchasing Agent the original of the executed Agreement. Within ten days the Contractor must submit executed performance and payment bonds and required certificate of insurance. Failure to do so shall constitute a default, and the County may award the Contract to the next lowest responsive and responsible bidder or solicit new bids. The County may then charge against the Contractor the difference between the amount of the Contract award and the amount for which a Contract is subsequently executed, up to the total amount of the Contractor's bid security.

27. EXPENSES INCURRED IN PREPARING BID

All expenses related to a bid are the sole responsibility of the bidder.

28. <u>NEGOTIATIONS WITH LOWEST RESPONSIVE AND RESPONSIBLE BIDDER</u>

If the bid by the lowest responsive and responsible bidder exceeds available funds, the County reserves the right to negotiate with the apparent low bidder to obtain an acceptable price. Negotiations with the apparent low bidder may involve discussions of reduction of quantity, quality, or other cost saving mechanisms. The final negotiated contract shall be subject to final approval of the County, in its sole discretion.

29. <u>ELECTRONIC SIGNATURE</u>

If awarded, the Bidder may be required to accept an agreement and sign electronically through the County's e-signature solution, DocuSign.

II. SUPPLEMENTARY SPECIFICATIONS

A. SCOPE OF WORK

The Contractor shall furnish all material, labor and resources for the park renovation at Towers Park, located at 801 South Scott Street, Arlington, Virginia 22204 (the "PROJECT") and work shall be performed in accordance with the requirements stated in this solicitation and its attachments. The site improvements include:

- Site grading
- Stormwater
- Playground Equipment
- ADA compliant access
- Site furnishings including, but not limited to benches, signage and fencing
- Planting
- Demolition of existing playground
- Reforestation
- Related site improvements

See Attachment B: Technical Specifications (170 pages)

See Attachment C: Construction Drawings/Plans (41 pages)

NOTE: THIS INVITATION TO BID REQUIRES PROVISION OF BRAND NAME ITEMS. SUBSTITUTIONS WILL NOT BE ALLOWED FOR THE FOLLOWING ITEMS:

• KOMPAN

www.kompan.us 605 W. Howard Lane, #101 Austin, TX 78753 (301) 213-6433 Contact: Page Castle

- 1. Jellyfish Tower (COROCORD19-0098-2C1)
- 2. Net Twister (1G110 COR203001-1101)
- Berliner, Inc.

www.berliner-equipment.com Playground Specialists, Inc. 29 Apples Church Road Thurmont, MD 21788 (800) 385-0075 Contact: Jeff Barber

- 1. Woodville Towers (USP0360800)
- Sparks @ Play <u>www.sparksatplay.com</u> 3705 Crondall Lane Owings Mills, MD 21117

(443) 334-4990 Contact: Sean Briggs

- 1. GFRC Rock Climber (1142042-01-05)
- Playworld

www.playspec.com Playground Specialists, Inc. 29 Apples Church Road Thurmont, MD 21788 (800) 385-0075 Contact: Jeff Barber

- 1. Double Bay Single Post Swing Frame (ZZXX0818,0819)
- 2. Bucket Swing seat (ZZXX0265)
- 3. Belt Swing Seat (ZZXX0260)

All other products listed in the drawings and specifications allow equivalents in accordance with the provisions of this solicitation.

FOLLOWING THIS PAGE IS THE AGREEMENT THAT WILL BE ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE COUNTY AND THE CONTRACTOR. THE AGREEMENT IS PART OF THIS SOLICITATION. THIS AGREEMENT IS SUBJECT TO REVIEW BY THE COUNTY ATTORNEY PRIOR TO BEING SUBMITTED FOR CONTRACTOR'S SIGNATURE.

III. AGREEMENT AND CONTRACT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA OFFICE OF THE PURCHASING AGENT SUITE 500, 2100 CLARENDON BOULEVARD ARLINGTON, VA 22201

AGREEMENT NO. 21-DPR-ITB-467

THIS AGREEMENT is made, on______, between <u>Contractor's name</u>, <u>Contractor's</u> <u>address</u> ("Contractor") a <u>name of state</u> <u>type of entity</u> authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia, and the County Board of Arlington County, Virginia. The County and the Contractor, for the consideration hereinafter specified, agree as follows:

1. CONTRACT DOCUMENTS

The Contract Documents consist of:

- Agreement No. 21-DPR-ITB-467, and all modifications properly incorporated into the Agreement
- Exhibit A Arlington County Invitation to Bid No. 21-DPR-ITB-467, including the General Conditions, and any Special Conditions and/or Supplementary Specifications
- Exhibit B Technical Specifications
- Exhibit C Construction Drawings/Plans
- Exhibit D Price Bid of Contractor

Where the terms and provisions of this Agreement vary from the terms and provisions of the other Contract Documents, the order of precedence of the Contract Documents shall be as follows:

Exhibits A, B and C are considered complementary documents, what is in one shall be considered as in all; where the terms of these Contract Documents vary the most stringent shall apply; and Exhibits A, B and C shall prevail over Exhibit D.

The Contract Documents set forth the entire agreement between the County and the Contractor. The County and the Contractor agree that no representative or agent of either party has made any representation or promise with respect to the parties' agreement that is not contained in the Contract Documents. The Contract Documents may be referred to below as the "Contract" or the "Agreement".

2. PROJECT OFFICER

The performance of the Contractor is subject to the review and approval of the County Project Officer who will be appointed by the Director of the Arlington County department or agency requesting the work under the Contract.

3. <u>SCOPE OF WORK</u>

The Contractor will furnish all labor, materials, and equipment for the construction of the park renovation at Towers Park, located at 801 South Scott Street, Arlington, Virginia 22204 (the "Project") and all other work shown, described, and required by the Contract Documents (hereinafter "the Work").

The Work shall be performed according to the standards established by the Contract Documents read together as a single specification. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility, at solely the Contractor's cost, to provide sufficient services to fulfill the purposes of the Work. Nothing in the Contract Documents shall be construed to limit the Contractor's responsibility to manage the details and execution of its Work.

4. <u>TIME FOR COMPLETION</u>

Work under this Agreement shall achieve Final Completion no later than two hundred ten (210) consecutive calendar days after the commencement date given in a Notice to Proceed provided by the County to the Contractor, subject to any modifications made as provided for in the Contract Documents. This two hundred ten (210) day period shall be the Period of Performance for Final Completion. Work will not reach Final Completion until it meets the requirements set forth in the General Conditions. Unless otherwise provided, no claims for early completion are allowed.

5. <u>CONTRACT AMOUNT</u>

The County will pay the Contractor in accordance with the terms of the Progress Payments and Retainage and Payment Terms sections below and at the lump sum amount shown in Exhibit D, but not more than \$______for the Contractor's completion of the Work as required by the Contract Documents provided the Work is performed to the satisfaction of and is accepted by the Project Officer. The Contractor will complete the Work for the total lump sum amount specified in this section ("Contract Amount") unless such amount is modified as provided in this Agreement. The Contract Amount includes all of the Contractor's costs and fees (profit).

6. PROGRESS PAYMENTS AND RETAINAGE

The County will make monthly progress or partial payments to the Contractor on the basis of an estimate, provided by the Contractor and approved by the Project Officer, of all work performed during the preceding calendar month to the satisfaction of the Project Officer. However, 5% of each progress payment will be retained by the County until Final Completion and acceptance of all Work covered by the Agreement.

All material and work covered by partial payments will become the property solely of the County at the time the partial payment is made. However, the Contractor will have the sole responsibility, care and custody for all materials and work upon which payments have been made until Final Acceptance.

When calculating payment for materials on-site, the County shall not pay for materials which are not scheduled for incorporation into the Work within sixty (60) days from the date of application for payment.

7. PAYMENT TERMS

The Contractor must submit invoices to the County's Project Officer, who will either approve the invoice or require corrections. Each invoice must certify that the invoice submitted is a true and accurate accounting of the work performed and goods and/or services provided and must be signed and attested to by the Contractor or authorized designee. The County will pay the Contractor within forty-five (45) days after approval of an invoice for completed work which is reasonable and allocable to the Contract. The number of the County Purchase Order pursuant to work has been performed must appear on all invoices. Unless otherwise specified herein, payment shall not be made prior to delivery and acceptance of the entire Work by the County.

8. PAYMENT OF SUBCONTRACTORS

The Contractor is obligated to take one of the two following actions within seven days after receipt of payment by the County for work performed by any subcontractor under this Contract:

a. Pay the subcontractor for the proportionate share of the total payment received from the County attributable to the work performed by the subcontractor under this Contract; or

b. Notify the County and the subcontractor, in writing, of the Contractor's intention to withhold all or a part of the subcontractor's payment with the reason for nonpayment.

The Contractor is obligated to pay interest to the subcontractor on all amounts owed by the Contractor to the subcontractor that remain unpaid after seven days following receipt by the Contractor of payment from the County for work performed by the subcontractor under this Contract, except for amounts withheld as allowed in subsection b., above. Unless otherwise provided under the terms of this Contract, interest will accrue at the rate of 1% per month.

The Contractor must include in each of its subcontracts, if any are permitted, a provision requiring each subcontractor to include or otherwise be subject to the same payment and interest requirements with respect to each lower-tier subcontractor.

The Contractor's obligation to pay an interest charge to a subcontractor pursuant to this section may not be construed to be an obligation of the County. A Contract modification may not be made for the purpose of providing reimbursement for such interest charge. A cost reimbursement claim may not include any amount for reimbursement for such interest charge.

9. RELEASE AND REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT

In order to receive final payment upon Final Completion of the Project and before Final Acceptance, the Contractor must submit to the Project Officer a signed original notarized copy of the Arlington County Release and Request for Final Payment form per the General Conditions.

10. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES

Time is of the essence under this Contract. The Work must be completed within the Time for Completion. The County and the Contractor agree that damages for failure to achieve Final Completion of the Work by the date specified under Time for Completion are not susceptible to exact determination but that \$715.00 per calendar day is in proportion to the loss that the County would suffer from such delay. Therefore, the Contractor will pay the County as liquidated damages \$715.00 per day for each and every day beyond the time for Final Completion that the County determines Final Completion has not achieved. The County will be entitled to deduct liquidated damages against any sums owed by the County to the Contractor under this Contract. The Contractor hereby waives any defense as to the validity of any liquidated damages on grounds that such liquidated damages are void as penalties or are not reasonably related to actual damages.

11. NON-APPROPRIATION

All payments by the County to the Contractor pursuant to this Contract are subject to the availability of an annual appropriation for this purpose by the County Board of Arlington County, Virginia ("Board"). In the event that the Board does not appropriate funds for the goods or services provided under this Contract, the County will terminate the Contract, without termination charge or other liability to the County, on the last day of the fiscal year or when the previous appropriation has been spent, whichever occurs first.

12. COUNTY PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENT

County purchases are authorized only if the County issues a Purchase Order in advance of the transaction, indicating that the ordering County agency has sufficient funds available to pay for the purchase. If the Contractor provides goods or services without a signed County Purchase Order, it does so at its own risk and expense. The County will not be liable for payment for any purchases made by its employees that are not authorized by the County Purchasing Agent.

13. <u>LIEN</u>

It is expressly agreed that after any payment has been made by the County either to the Contractor for work done, or labor or material supplied under the Contract, the County will have a lien upon all material delivered to the site either by the Contractor, or for the Contractor, which is to be used in the performance of the Contract.

14. EMPLOYMENT DISCRIMINATION BY CONTRACTOR PROHIBITED

During the performance of its work pursuant to this Contract:

- A. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, age or disability or on any other basis prohibited by state law. The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- B. Notices, advertisements and solicitations placed in accordance with federal law, rule or regulation will be deemed sufficient for meeting the requirements of this section.
- C. The Contractor will state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees that it places or causes to be placed that such Contractor is an Equal Opportunity Employer.
- D. The Contractor will comply with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 ("ADA"), which prohibits discrimination against individuals with disabilities in employment and mandates that disabled individuals be provided access to publicly and privately provided services and activities.
- E. The Contractor must include the provisions of the foregoing paragraphs in every subcontract or purchase order of more than \$10,000.00 relating to this Contract so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

15. EMPLOYMENT OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS PROHIBITED

In accordance with §2.2-4311.1 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, the Contractor must not during the performance of this Contract knowingly employ an unauthorized alien, as that term is defined in the federal Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986.

16. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE TO BE MAINTAINED BY CONTRACTOR

During the performance of this Contract, the Contractor must: (i) provide a drug-free workplace for its employees; (ii) post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, sale, distribution, dispensation, possession, or use of a controlled substance or marijuana is prohibited in the Contractor's workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violating such prohibition; (iii) state in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the Contractor that the Contractor maintains a drug-free workplace; and (iv) include the provisions of the foregoing clauses in every subcontract or purchase order of more than \$10,000.00 relating to this Contract so that the provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.

For the purposes of this section, "workplace" means the site(s) for the performance of the work required by this Contract.

17. SEXUAL HARASSMENT POLICY

If the Contractor employs more than five employees, the Contractor shall (i) provide annual training on the Contractor's sexual harassment policy to all supervisors and employees providing services in the Commonwealth, except such supervisors or employees that are required to complete sexual harassment training provided by the Department of Human Resource Management, and (ii) post the Contractor's sexual harassment policy in (a) a conspicuous public place in each building located in the Commonwealth that the Contractor owns or leases for business purposes and (b) the Contractor's employee handbook.

18. PROJECT STAFF

The County has the right to reasonably reject staff or subcontractors whom the Contractor assigns to the Project. The Contractor must then provide replacement staff or subcontractors satisfactory to the County in a timely manner and at no additional cost to the County. The day-to-day supervision and control of the Contractor's employees and its subcontractors is the sole responsibility of the Contractor.

19. FAILURE TO DELIVER

If the Contractor fails to deliver goods or services in accordance with the Contract terms and conditions, the County, after notice to the Contractor, may procure the goods or services from other sources and hold the Contractor responsible for any resulting additional purchase and administrative costs. The County shall be entitled to offset such costs against any sums owed by the County to the Contractor. However, if public necessity requires the use of nonconforming materials or supplies, they may be accepted at a reduction in price to be determined solely by the County.

20. UNSATISFACTORY WORK

If any of the work done, or material, goods, or equipment provided by the Contractor, is unsatisfactory to the County the Contractor must, upon notice from the County, immediately remove at the Contractor's expense such unsatisfactory work, material, goods, or equipment and replace the same with work, material, goods, or equipment satisfactory to the County. If the Contractor fails to do so after fifteen (15) days the County shall have the right to remove or replace the rejected work, material, goods, or equipment at the expense of the Contractor and offset the expense and administrative costs against any sums owed to the Contractor. This provision applies during the Contract term and during any warranty or guarantee period. At the Project Officer's discretion, rather than correction or replacement of the work, an appropriate adjustment to the Contract Amount may be made.

21. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE, INCLUDING BREACH AND DEFAULT; CURE

The County may terminate this Contract at any time as follows: (1) for cause, if, as determined by the County, the Contractor is in breach or default or has failed to perform the Work satisfactorily; or (2) for the convenience of the County.

Upon receipt of a notice of termination, the Contractor must not place any further orders or subcontracts for materials, services or facilities; must terminate all vendors and subcontracts, except as are necessary for the completion of any portion of the Work that the County did not terminate; and must immediately deliver all documents related to the terminated Work to the County.

Any purchases that the Contractor makes after the notice of termination will be the sole responsibility of the Contractor, unless the County has approved the purchases in writing as necessary for completion of any portion of the Work that the County did not terminate.

If any court of competent jurisdiction finds a termination for cause by the County to be improper, then the termination will be deemed a termination for convenience.

A. TERMINATION FOR CAUSE, INCLUDING BREACH AND DEFAULT; CURE

 <u>Termination for Unsatisfactory Performance</u>. If the County determines that the Contractor has failed to perform satisfactorily, then the County will give the Contractor written notice of such failure(s) and the opportunity to cure them within 15 days or any other period specified by the County ("Cure Period"). If the Contractor fails to cure within the Cure Period, the County may terminate the Contract for failure to provide satisfactory performance by providing written notice with a termination date. The Contractor must submit any request for termination costs, with all supporting documentation, to the County Project Officer within 30 days after the expiration of the Cure Period. The County may accept or reject the request for termination costs, in whole or in part, and may notify the Contractor of its decision within a reasonable time.

In the event of termination by the County for failure to perform satisfactorily, the Contractor must continue to provide its services as previously scheduled through the termination date, and the County must continue to pay all fees and charges incurred through the termination date.

2. <u>Termination for Breach or Default</u>. If the County terminates the Contract for default or breach of any Contract provision or condition, then the termination will be immediate after notice of termination to the Contractor (unless the County provides for an opportunity to cure), and the Contractor will not be permitted to seek termination costs.

Upon any termination pursuant to this section, the Contractor will be liable to the County for costs that the County must expend to complete the Work, including costs resulting from any related delays and from unsatisfactory or non-compliant work performed by the Contractor or its subcontractors. The County will deduct such costs from any amount due to the Contractor; or if the County does not owe the Contractor, the Contractor must promptly pay the costs within 15 days of a demand by the County. This section does not limit the County's recovery of any other damages to which it is entitled by law.

Except as otherwise directed by the County, the Contractor must stop work on the date of receipt the notice of the termination.

B. TERMINATION FOR THE CONVENIENCE OF THE COUNTY

The County may terminate this Contract in whole or in part whenever the Purchasing Agent determines that termination is in the County's best interest. The County will give the Contractor at least 15 days' notice in writing. The notice must specify the extent to which the Contract is terminated and the effective termination date. The Contractor will be entitled to termination costs, plus any other reasonable amounts that the parties might negotiate; but no amount will be allowed for anticipatory profits.

Except as otherwise directed by the County, the Contractor must stop work on the date of receipt of the notice of the termination.

22. INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor covenants for itself, its employees and its subcontractors to save, defend, hold harmless and indemnify the County and all of its elected and appointed officials, officers, current and former employees, agents, departments, agencies, boards and commissions (collectively the "County Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims made by third parties for any and all losses, damages, injuries, fines, penalties, costs (including court costs and attorneys' fees), charges, liability, demands or exposure resulting from, arising out of or in any way connected with the Contractor's acts or omissions, including the acts or omissions of its employees, and/or subcontractors, in performance or nonperformance of the Contract. This duty to save, defend, hold harmless and indemnify will survive the termination of this Contract. If the Contractor fails or refuses to fulfill its obligations contained in this section, the Contractor must reimburse the County for any and all resulting payments and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees. The Contractor must pay such expenses upon demand by the County, and failure to do so may result in the County withholding such amounts from any payments to the Contractor under this Contract.

23. INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION

The Contractor warrants and guarantees that in providing services under this Contract neither the Contractor nor any subcontractor is infringing on the intellectual property rights (including, but not limited to, copyright, patent, mask and trademark) of third parties.

If the Contractor or any of its employees or subcontractors uses any design, device, work or material that is covered by patent or copyright, it is understood that the Contract Amount includes all royalties, licensing fees, and any other costs arising from such use in connection with the Work under this Contract.

The Contractor covenants for itself, its employees and its subcontractors to save, defend, hold harmless, and indemnify the County Indemnitees, as defined above, from and against any and all claims, losses, damages, injuries, fines, penalties, costs (including court costs and attorneys' fees), charges, liability or exposure for infringement of or on account of any trademark, copyright, patented or unpatented invention, process or article manufactured or used in the performance of this Contract. This duty to save, defend, hold harmless and indemnify will survive the termination of this Contract. If the Contractor fails or refuses to fulfill its obligations contained in this section, the Contractor must reimburse the County for any and all resulting payments and expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees. The Contractor must pay such expenses upon demand by the County, and failure to do so may result in the County withholding such amounts from any payments to the Contractor under this Contract.

24. COPYRIGHT

By this Contract, the Contractor irrevocably transfers, assigns, sets over and conveys to the County all rights, title and interest, including the sole exclusive and complete copyright interest, in any and all copyrightable works created pursuant to this Contract. The Contractor will execute any documents that the County requests to formalize such transfer or assignment.

The rights granted to the County by this section are irrevocable and may not be rescinded or modified, including in connection with or as a result of the termination of or a dispute concerning this Contract.

The Contractor may not use subcontractors or third parties to develop or provide input into any copyrightable materials produced pursuant to this Contract without the County's advance written approval and unless the Contractor includes this Copyright provision in any contract or agreement with such subcontractors or third parties related to this Contract.

25. OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT

This Contract does not confer on the Contractor any ownership rights or rights to use or disclose the County's data or inputs.

All work product, in any form, that results from this Contract is the property of the County and must be provided or returned to the County upon completion, termination, or cancellation of this Contract. The Contractor will not use or allow others to use the work product for any purpose other than performance of this Contract without the written consent of the County.

The work product is confidential, and the Contractor may neither release the work product nor share its contents. The Contractor will refer all inquiries regarding the status of any work product to the Project Officer or to his or her designee. At the County's request, the Contractor will deliver all work product, including hard copies of electronic files, to the Project Officer and will destroy all electronic files.

The Contractor must include the provisions of this section as part of any contract or agreement related to this Contract into which it enters with subcontractors or other third parties.

The provisions of this section will survive any termination or cancellation of this Contract.

26. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION

The Contractor and its employees, agents and subcontractors will hold as confidential all County information obtained under this Contract. Confidential information includes, but is not limited to, nonpublic personal information; personal health information (PHI); social security numbers; addresses; dates of birth; other contact information or medical information about a person; and information pertaining to products, operations, systems, customers, prospective customers, techniques, intentions, processes, plans and expertise. The Contractor must take reasonable measures to ensure that all of its employees, agents and subcontractors are informed of and abide by this requirement.

27. ETHICS IN PUBLIC CONTRACTING

This Contract incorporates by reference Article 9 of the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution, as well as all state and federal laws related to ethics, conflicts of interest or bribery, including the State and Local Government Conflict of Interests Act (Code of Virginia § 2.2-3100 et seq.), the Virginia Governmental Frauds Act (Code of Virginia § 18.2-498.1 et seq.) and Articles 2 and 3 of Chapter 10 of Title 18.2 of the

Code of Virginia, as amended (§ 18.2-438 et seq.). The Contractor certifies that its proposal was made without collusion or fraud; that it has not offered or received any kickbacks or inducements from any other offeror, supplier, manufacturer or subcontractor; and that it has not conferred on any public employee having official responsibility for this procurement any payment, loan, subscription, advance, deposit of money, services or anything of more than nominal value, present or promised, unless consideration of substantially equal or greater value was exchanged.

28. COUNTY EMPLOYEES

No Arlington County employee may share in any part of this Contract or receive any benefit from the Contract that is not available to the general public.

29. FORCE MAJEURE

Neither party will be held responsible for failure to perform the duties and responsibilities imposed by this Contract if such failure is due to a fire, riot, rebellion, natural disaster, war, act of terrorism or act of God that is beyond the control of the party and that makes performance impossible or illegal, unless otherwise specified in the Contract.

30. AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS

The Contractor must, pursuant to Code of Virginia § 2.2-4311.2, be and remain authorized to transact business in the Commonwealth of Virginia during the entire term of this Contract. Otherwise, the Contract is voidable at the sole option of and with no expense to the County.

31. RELATION TO THE COUNTY

The Contractor is an independent contractor, and neither the Contractor nor its employees or subcontractors will be considered employees, servants or agents of the County. The County will not be responsible for any negligence or other wrongdoing by the Contractor or its employees, servants or agents. The County will not withhold payments to the Contractor for any federal or state unemployment taxes, federal or state income taxes or Social Security tax or for any other benefits. The County will not provide to the Contractor any insurance coverage or other benefits, including workers' compensation.

32. ANTITRUST

The Contractor conveys, sells, assigns and transfers to the County all rights, title and interest in and to all causes of action under state or federal antitrust laws that the Contractor may have relating to this Contract.

33. <u>REPORT STANDARDS</u>

The Contractor must submit all written reports required by this Contract for advance review in a format approved by the Project Officer. Reports must be accurate and grammatically correct and should not contain spelling errors. The Contractor will bear the cost of correcting grammatical or spelling errors and inaccurate report data and of other revisions that are required to bring the report(s) into compliance with this section.

Whenever possible, proposals must comply with the following guidelines:

- printed double-sided on at least 30% recycled-content and/or tree-free paper
- recyclable and/or easily removable covers or binders made from recycled materials (proposals with glued bindings that meet all other requirements are acceptable)

- avoid use of plastic covers or dividers
- avoid unnecessary attachments or documents or superfluous use of paper (e.g. separate title sheets or chapter dividers)

34. <u>AUDIT</u>

The Contractor must retain all books, records and other documents related to this Contract for at least five years, or such period of time required by the County's funding partner(s), if any, whichever is greater, after the final payment and must allow the County or its authorized agents to examine the documents during this period and during the Contract Term. The Contractor must provide any requested documents to the County for examination within 15 days of the request, at the Contractor's expense. Should the County's request, reimburse the County for the overcharges and for the reasonable costs of the County's examination, including, but not limited to, the services of external audit firm and attorney's fees; or the County may deduct the overcharges and examination costs from any amount that the County owes to the Contractor. If the Contractor wishes to destroy or dispose of any records related to this Contract (including confidential records to which the County does not have ready access) within five years after the final payment, or such period of time required by the County's funding partner(s), if any, whichever is greater, the Contractor must give the County at least 30 days' notice and must not dispose of the documents if the County objects.

35. ASSIGNMENT

The Contractor may not assign, transfer, convey or otherwise dispose of any award or any of its rights, obligations or interests under this Contract without the prior written consent of the County.

36. AMENDMENTS

This Contract may not be modified except by written amendment executed by persons duly authorized to bind the Contractor and the County.

37. ARLINGTON COUNTY PURCHASING RESOLUTION AND COUNTY POLICIES

Nothing in this Contract waives any provision of the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution, which is incorporated herein by reference, or any applicable County policy.

38. DISPUTE RESOLUTION

All disputes arising under this Agreement or concerning its interpretation, whether involving law or fact and including but not limited to claims for additional work, compensation or time, and all claims for alleged breach of contract must be submitted in writing to the Project Officer as soon as the basis for the claim arises. In accordance with the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution, claims denied by the Project Officer may be submitted to the County Manager in writing no later than 60 days after the final payment. The time limit for a final written decision by the County Manager is 30 days. Procedures concerning contractual claims, disputes, administrative appeals and protests are contained in the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution. The Contractor must continue to work as scheduled pending a decision of the Project Officer, County Manager, County Board or a court of law.

39. APPLICABLE LAW, FORUM, VENUE, AND JURISDICTION

This Contract is governed in all respects by the laws of the Commonwealth of Virginia; and the jurisdiction, forum and venue for any litigation concerning the Contract or the Work is in the Circuit Court for Arlington County, Virginia, and in no other court.

40. ARBITRATION

No claim arising under or related to this Contract may be subject to arbitration.

41. NONEXCLUSIVITY OF REMEDIES

All remedies available to the County under this Contract are cumulative, and no remedy will be exclusive of any other at law or in equity.

42. NO WAIVER

The failure to exercise a right provided for in this Contract will not be a subsequent waiver of the same right or of any other right.

43. <u>SEVERABILITY</u>

The sections, paragraphs, clauses, sentences, and phrases of this Contract are severable; and if any section, paragraph, clause, sentence or phrase of this Contract is declared invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, the rest of the Contract will remain in effect.

44. ATTORNEY'S FEES

In the event that the County prevails in any legal action or proceeding brought by the County to enforce any provision of this Contract, the Contractor will pay the County's reasonable attorney's fees and expenses.

45. SURVIVAL OF TERMS

In addition to any statement that a specific term or paragraph survives the expiration or termination of this Contract, the following sections also survive: INDEMNIFICATION; INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY INDEMNIFICATION; RELATION TO COUNTY; OWNERSHIP OF WORK PRODUCT; AUDIT; COPYRIGHT; DISPUTE RESOLUTION; APPLICABLE LAW AND JURISDICTION; ATTORNEY'S FEES, AND CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.

46. HEADINGS

The section headings in this Contract are inserted only for convenience and do not affect the substance of the Contract or limit the sections' scope.

47. <u>AMBIGUITIES</u>

The parties and their counsel have participated fully in the drafting of this Agreement; and any rule that ambiguities are to be resolved against the drafting party does not apply. The language in this Agreement is to be interpreted as to its plain meaning and not strictly for or against any party.

48. <u>NOTICES</u>

Unless otherwise provided in writing, all legal notices and other communications required by this Contract are deemed to have been given when either (a) delivered in person; (b) delivered by an agent, such as a delivery service; or (c) deposited in the United States mail, postage prepaid, certified or registered and addressed as follows:

TO THE CONTRACTOR:					
				_	
				_	
				_	

TO THE COUNTY:

_____, Project Officer

AND

Sharon T. Lewis, LL.M, MPS, VCO, CPPB Purchasing Agent Arlington County, Virginia 2100 Clarendon Boulevard, Suite 500 Arlington, Virginia 22201

TO COUNTY MANAGER'S OFFICE (FOR PROJECT CLAIMS):

County Manager Arlington County, Virginia 2100 Clarendon Boulevard, Suite 318 Arlington, Virginia 22201

49. ARLINGTON COUNTY BUSINESS LICENSES

The Contractor must comply with the provisions of Chapter 11 ("Licenses") of the Arlington County Code, if applicable. For information on the provisions of that Chapter and its applicability to this Contract, the Contractor must contact the Arlington County Business License Division, Office of the Commissioner of the Revenue, 2100 Clarendon Blvd., Suite 200, Arlington, Virginia, 22201, telephone number (703) 228-3060.

50. NON-DISCRIMINATION NOTICE

Arlington County does not discriminate against faith-based organizations.

51. INSURANCE, PAYMENT AND PERFORMANCE BONDS

The Contractor shall maintain the required insurance coverage and payment and performance bonds through completion of the Contract, including all warranty and guarantee periods.

52. MATERIAL CHANGES.

The Contractor shall notify Purchasing Agent within seven days of any material changes in its operation that relate to any matter attested regarding certifications on its bid form.

WITNESS these signatures:

THE COUNTY BOARD OF ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA	CONTRACTOR
AUTHORIZED	AUTHORIZED
SIGNATURE:	SIGNATURE:
NAME: TOMEKA PRICE	NAME:
TITLE: PROCUREMENT OFFICER	TITLE:
DATE:	DATE:

IV. ARLINGTON COUNTY DEPARTMENT OF PARKS AND RECREATION CONSTRUCTION GENERAL CONDITIONS

TABLE OF CONTENTS

A. INTRODUCTION TO TERMS

- B. DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DATA
 - 1) INTENT OF THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
 - 2) DISCREPANCIES AND ERRORS
 - 3) DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS
 - 4) DOCUMENTS ON THE JOBSITE
 - 5) OWNERSHIP OF DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS
 - 6) SUBMITTALS
 - 7) TESTS
 - 8) STANDARDS
 - 9) SUBSTITUTIONS AFTER CONTRACT AWARD
 - 10) SURVEYS AND CONTROLS
 - 11) AS-BUILT DRAWINGS
 - 12) RECORDKEEPING AND PROJECT DOCUMENT FILES
- C. COUNTY, COUNTY PROJECT OFFICER, AND CONTRACTOR RELATIONS
 - 1) STATUS OF PROJECT OFFICER
 - 2) LIMITATION ON COUNTY'S RESPONSIBILITIES
 - 3) INSPECTION OF WORK
 - 4) INSPECTION OF MATERIALS
 - 5) EXAMINATION OF COMPLETED WORK
 - 6) RIGHT TO SUSPEND WORK
 - 7) RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK
 - 8) SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR
 - 9) DRUG FREE POLICY
 - 10) PERFORMANCE OF WORK BY THE CONTRACTOR
 - 11) LANDS BY COUNTY
 - 12) LANDS BY CONTRACTOR
 - 13) PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY
 - 14) SEPARATE CONTRACTS
 - 15) SUBCONTRACTS
 - 16) ELIMINATED ITEMS
- D. MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP
 - 1) MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR
 - 2) IBC AND VUSBC REQUIREMENTS
 - 3) ADA COMPLIANCE
 - 4) MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS
 - 5) WARRANTY
 - 6) INSPECTION, ACCEPTANCE AND TITLE TO MATERIALS
 - 7) CONTRACTOR'S TITLE TO MATERIALS
 - 8) TITLE TO MATERIALS AND WORK COVERED BY PARTIAL PAYMENTS

- 9) CUTTING, PATCHING AND DIGGING
- 10) REJECTED WORK AND MATERIALS
- 11) HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
- 12) HAZARDOUS WASTE
- 13) ASBESTOS
- 14) PROHIBITION AGAINST ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS
- E. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY AND PUBLIC SAFETY
 - 1) MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC
 - 2) SAFETY AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION
 - 3) OVERHEAD HIGH VOLTAGE LINES SAFETY ACT
 - 4) SANITARY PROVISIONS
 - 5) DAMAGES CAUSED BY WORK
 - 6) CLEANING UP
- F. PROGRESS AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK
 - 1) NOTICE TO PROCEED
 - 2) TIME FOR COMPLETION
 - 3) SCHEDULE OF COMPLETION
 - 4) CONDITIONS FOR COMPLETION
 - 5) USE OF COMPLETED PORTIONS
- G. MEASUREMENT AND PAYMENT
 - 1) PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR
 - 2) PAYMENT FOR MATERIALS ON SITE
 - 3) STIPULATED PRICE ITEMS
 - 4) PAYMENTS WITHHELD
 - 5) COUNTY ORDERED CHANGES IN WORK
 - 6) CLAIMS FOR EXTRA COST
 - 7) DAMAGES FOR DELAY; EXTENSIONS OF TIME FOR COMPLETION OTHER THAN FOR WEATHER
 - 8) TIME EXTENSIONS FOR WEATHER
 - 9) RELEASE OF LIENS
 - 10) FINAL PAYMENT

A. INTRODUCTION TO TERMS

- 1) The term "Agreement" means the completed and signed Form of Contract Agreement.
- 2) The term "Award Date" means the date of execution of the Agreement by the Purchasing Agent.
- 3) The term "Business Day" shall refer to any day that the County is open for general business.
- 4) The term "Calendar Day" means any day of twenty-four hours measured from midnight to the next midnight. Included are weekends and holidays. When the term "Day" is used, it shall be assumed to refer to a Calendar Day, unless otherwise specified.
- 5) The term "Change Order" means a written order to Contractor, signed by the County and the Contractor, which authorizes a change in the Work, or an adjustment in the Contract Amount, and/or the Time for Completion issued after execution of the Agreement and is incorporated into and becomes part of the Contract Documents.
- 6) The term "Commencement Date" means the date on which the Time for Completion shall commence for the Contractor to begin to perform his obligations under the Contract Documents, as provided in the Notice to Proceed.
- 7) The term "Construction Change Directive" means a written order issued by the County directing a change in the Work prior to agreement on adjustment, if any, in the Contract Amount or Contract Time, or both.
- 8) The term "Contract Documents" means the Agreement and all the documents and Exhibits identified therein, which shall include the Drawings and the Specifications, and all modifications thereto properly incorporated in the Contract.
 - a) The term "Contract Drawings" means all drawings and construction notes which show the locations, character, dimensions, and details of the Work pertaining to the Contract.
 - b) The term "Specifications" means that part of the Contract Documents that describes the quality of materials, methods of installation, standard of workmanship, and the administrative and procedural requirements for the performance of the Work under the Contract.
 - c) The term "Special Conditions" means the written statements modifying or supplementing the General Conditions for requirements or conditions particular to the Contract.
- 9) The terms "County" and "Contractor" shall mean the respective parties to the Contract. They shall be treated throughout the Contract Documents as though each were of the singular number and masculine gender. Only one Contractor is recognized as a party to this Contract.
- 10) The term "Critical Path" shall mean the longest sequence of activities in the Project schedule which must be completed on time for the Project to be completed within the Time for Completion. An activity on the critical path cannot be started until its predecessor activity is complete.

- 11) The term "Delay" means an event or condition that results in a work activity starting or being completed later than originally planned.
- 12) The term "Final Acceptance" shall mean the date on which the County issues the final payment for the Work.
- 13) The term "Final Completion" shall mean the condition when all of the requirements, as identified in Technical Specifications Section 017700, Closeout Procedures, and conditions specified in paragraph F.4. below have been met and accepted by the Project Officer. The date of the Final Completion of the Work under the Contract is the date on which Final Completion is accomplished.
- 14) The term "Landscape Architect" means the County Landscape Architect assigned by the Director of the County Department responsible for the project or a contractor employed by the County to perform design services or design oversight and identified in the Contract Documents or in a written notice to the Contractor from the Project Officer responsible for the project.
- 15) "Notice to Proceed" shall mean a written notice given by the County to the Contractor specifying the Commencement Date.
- 16) The term "Project" means the entire proposed construction to be executed as stipulated in the Contract Documents.
- 17) The term "Project Officer" means the County Project Officer assigned by the Director of the County Department responsible for the project, or the Director's designee. When a designee to act on behalf of the Project Officer is used by the County, the name of the designee and the duties and authority of such designee will be identified in the Contract Documents or in a written notice to the Contractor from the Project Officer responsible for the project. The designee may be a professional architect, landscape architect, engineer or other person employed by or hired by the County to perform construction services administration, design services, or project oversight.
- 18) The term "Punch List" means unfinished items of the construction of the Project. The unfinished items of construction shall be minor or insubstantial details of construction, mechanical adjustment or decoration remaining to be performed, the non-completion of which would not materially affect use of the Project, and which shall be completed by Final Completion.
- 19) The term "Schedule of Values" means a listing of the Contractor's total contract value by Construction Specifications Institute (CSI) divisions, including Division 1, Contractor's General Conditions.
- 20) The term "Site" refers to that portion of the property on which the Work is to be performed or which has otherwise been set aside for use by the Contractor.
- 21) The term "Stipulated Price Item" involves items of Work, unanticipated or of unknown quantity at the time of issuance of the solicitation for a Bid. The Unit Price for the "Stipulated Price Item", as identified in the "Stipulated Price Items" section of the Bid Form, is predetermined by the

County as the current reasonably workable rate for the Item inclusive of all necessary labor, equipment, materials, overheads (provision and installation), and the contractor's profit.

- 22) The term "Subcontractor", as employed herein, shall include only those having a direct contract with the Contractor, and it shall include those who furnish material worked to a special design according to the plans and specifications for this Work but shall not include those who merely furnish material not so worked.
- 23) The term "Time for Completion" shall mean the time period set forth in the Agreement.
- 24) The term "Work" shall mean the services and tasks performed under this Contract including, but not limited to, furnishing labor, and furnishing and installing materials and equipment required to complete the Project as specified in the Contract Documents.

B. DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS AND RELATED DATA

1. INTENT OF THE DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

- a. It is understood that, except as otherwise specifically stated in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall provide and pay for all materials, labor, tools, equipment, water, water haulage, light power, transportation, superintendence, temporary construction of all kinds, and other services and facilities of every nature whatsoever that are necessary to execute and deliver the Work, complete and usable within the scope of the Contract with all parts in working order, and all connections properly made.
- b. The general character and scope of the Work are illustrated by the Drawings and listed in the Specifications. Any additional drawings and other instructions deemed necessary by the Project Officer will be furnished to the Contractor when required for the Work and shall become incorporated into the Contract Documents.
- c. Unless otherwise specifically noted, the word "similar" where it occurs in the Drawings, shall be interpreted in its general sense and not as meaning identical, and all details shall be worked out in relation to their locations and their connection with other parts of the Work.
- d. Where "as shown", "as indicated" "as detailed", or words of similar import are used, it shall be understood that the direction, requirements, permission, approval or acceptance of the Project Officer is intended unless stated otherwise. As used herein, "provide" shall be understood to mean "provide complete in place", that is, "furnish and install".
- e. Materials or work described in words which, so applied, have a well-known technical or trade meaning, shall be held to refer to the recognized technical or trade meaning.
- f. Figured dimensions on the plans shall be used; drawings shall not be scaled.

2. DISCREPANCIES AND ERRORS

If the Contractor discovers any discrepancies between the Drawings and Specifications and the site conditions or any errors or omissions in the Drawings or Specifications, the Contractor shall at once, but in no event later than two business days after discovery of the discrepancy or error, report them in writing to the Project Officer. If the Contractor proceeds with any work that may be affected by such discrepancies, errors, or omissions, after their discovery, but before their

clarification, such work shall be at the Contractor's sole risk and expense and such work may not be the basis of any Claim for Extra Cost. Issues affecting critical path activities shall be made known to the Project Officer or designee within two business days after discovery.

3. DIFFERING SITE CONDITIONS

The Contractor shall, within twenty-four (24) hours after becoming aware of differing site conditions, and before the conditions are disturbed, give a written notice to the Project Officer of subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site which differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or previously unknown physical conditions discovered at the site of an unusual nature and which differ materially from those ordinarily expected to be encountered at the site.

The Project Officer will investigate the site conditions within five (5) calendar days after receiving the notice. If the conditions do materially differ to the extent that an increase or decrease would result in the Contractor's cost of the Work, or the time required for performing any part of the Work under the contract, an equitable adjustment may be made under this clause and the Contract modified in writing accordingly.

No request by the Contractor for an adjustment to the contract under this clause shall be allowed, unless the Contractor has given the written notice required. If the Contractor proceeds with any work that may be affected by such differing site conditions before giving notice to the Project Officer as set forth herein, such work shall be at the Contractor's sole risk and expense.

No request by the Contractor for an adjustment to the contract for differing site conditions shall be allowed if made after Final Payment under the Contract.

4. DOCUMENTS ON THE JOBSITE

The Contractor shall keep on the site of the Project a copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Permits, Permitted Drawings, and all other applicable documents including all authorized revisions, and shall at all times give the County and its authorized representatives access thereto.

5. OWNERSHIP OF DRAWINGS AND SPECIFICATIONS

All Drawings and Specifications and copies thereof furnished by the County are the property of the County and shall not be used on other projects. Upon completion of the Project, all copies of the Drawings and Specifications except the signed Contract sets shall be returned to the Project Officer.

6. <u>SUBMITTALS</u>

Submittals shall be processed in accordance with the Specifications.

7. <u>TESTS</u>

The County, through a third-party testing agency, will perform any specified laboratory tests of materials and finished articles at the County's expense. Failure of any material to pass the specified tests or any test performed by the third-party testing agency will be sufficient cause for refusal to consider, under this Contract, any further materials of the same brand or make of that material. Additionally, the Project Officer, in his discretion, may order that any failed test be reperformed at the Contractor's sole expense. Samples of various materials delivered on the site or in place may be taken by the third-party testing agency for testing. Samples failing to meet the

Contract requirements will automatically void previous approvals of the items tested. The Contractor is required to coordinate and schedule all testing in a manner that permits the quality control standards to be met but does not incur unreasonable expenses upon the County. Any charges resulting from the Contractor failing to coordinate testing services will be the responsibility of the Contractor.

8. <u>STANDARDS</u>

Any material specified by reference to the number, symbol or title of a specific standard, such as a Commercial Standard, a Federal Specification, a Trade Association Standard, or other similar standard, shall comply with the requirements in the latest revision of the standards or specification and any amendment or supplement, except as limited to type, class or grade, or as modified in such reference. The standard referred to, except as modified in the Specifications, shall have full force and effect as though printed in the Specifications.

9. SUBSTITUTIONS AFTER CONTRACT AWARD

Requests for substitutions for specified items after the award of Contract will not be considered except with just cause and with the written approval of the Project Officer. Applications for acceptance of substitutions for specified items will be considered only upon request of the Contractor, not of individuals, trades or suppliers, and only for a specific purpose; no blanket acceptance will be granted. No acceptance of a substitution will be valid unless it is in written form and signed by the Project Officer or designee. The Contractor shall use Form CSI 13.1A when requesting a substitution.

If any proposed substitution will affect a correlated function, adjacent construction or the work of other contractors, then the necessary changes and modifications to the affected work shall be considered as an essential part of the proposed substitution, to be accomplished by the Contractor without additional expense or an extension of contract time to the County, if and when accepted. Detail drawings and other information necessary to show and explain the proposed modifications shall be submitted with the request for acceptance of the substitution.

10. SURVEYS AND CONTROLS

Unless otherwise stated, the County will provide horizontal and vertical reference points necessary for the Contractor to proceed with the Work. The Contractor shall carefully preserve all reference points, and in the case of destruction thereof by the Contractor or due to the negligence of the Contractor or of any subcontractor, the Contractor shall be responsible for expense and damage resulting therefrom and shall be responsible for any mistakes or construction errors that may be caused by the loss or disturbance of such reference points. The Contractor shall be responsible for laying out the Work and shall retain a professional land surveyor licensed in the Commonwealth of Virginia to survey and provide all necessary construction layouts and to establish all control lines, grades, and elevations during construction.

11. AS-BUILT DRAWINGS

As-built drawings shall be the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall maintain and mark up one (1) set of prints of the applicable Contract drawings to portray as-built construction. The prints shall be neatly and clearly marked to show all variations between the Work actually provided and that indicated on the Contract Drawings, and all utilities encountered in the Work. All drafting shall conform to good drafting practice and shall include such supplementary notes, legends and details as may be necessary for legibility and clear portrayal of the as-built

construction. A cumulative listing of the plan changes shall be submitted with every payment request. At the completion of the Project and prior to request for Final Payment, the Contractor shall turn over to the Project Officer the final cumulative listing of plan changes and a complete set of As-Built drawings in paper copy and .pdf electronic format and AUTOCAD format signed and sealed by a Registered Professional Engineer or Registered Land Surveyor. The as-built shall comply with Arlington County DES-CEP permitting and certification requirements.

12. RECORD KEEPING AND PROJECT DOCUMENT FILES

The Contractor shall provide a web based construction management tool acceptable to the County that will allow, but not be limited to, record keeping and document storage of all construction files, including approved shop drawings, change orders, construction progress meeting minutes, warranties, equipment specifications and brochures, record drawings, and Operation and Maintenance (O&M) Manuals. The Contractor shall provide at least six (6) hours of training of use of the construction management tool to the Project Officer as well as to the architect and sub-consultants. Before Final Payment is made, the Contractor shall provide the Project Officer a CD of all the files in the web based construction management tool. The Project Officer and the architect shall have unlimited access to the construction management tool, during the construction period and up to one (1) year after completion of the Project or after Final Payment is made.

C. COUNTY, PROJECT OFFICER, AND CONTRACTOR RELATIONS

1. STATUS OF PROJECT OFFICER

The Project Officer or designee shall be the County's representative during the construction period. The Project Officer or designee shall have authority to suspend the Work whenever such suspension may be necessary in the responsible opinion of the Project Officer. The Project Officer or designee shall also have authority to reject all work and materials that do not conform to the Contract and to decide questions that arise in the execution of the Work. The Project Officer will, within a reasonable time, make decisions on all matters relating to the execution and progress of the Work.

2. LIMITATION ON COUNTY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

Except as modified by the Contract Documents, the County shall not supervise, direct, or have control or authority over, nor be responsible for the Contractor's means, methods, techniques, sequences or procedures of construction; the safety precautions and programs related to safety; or the Contractor's failure to perform or furnish the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents.

3. INSPECTION OF WORK

The Project Officer and representatives of any public authority having jurisdiction shall, at all times, have access to the Work while in progress. The Contractor shall provide suitable facilities for such access and for proper observation of the Work and shall conduct all special tests required by the specifications, the Project Officer's instructions, and any laws, ordinances or the regulations of any public authority applicable to the Work. Nothing in this section shall abrogate or otherwise limit or relieve the Contractor's independent duty to inspect the Work.

4. INSPECTION OF MATERIALS

All articles, materials, and supplies purchased by the Contractor for the Work are subject to inspection by the Project Officer upon delivery to the site and during manufacturing or fabrication.

The County reserves the right to return for full credit, at the risk and expense of the Contractor, all or part of the articles, materials, or supplies furnished contrary to specifications and instructions. Nothing in this section shall abrogate or otherwise limit or relieve the Contractor's independent duty to inspect the materials.

5. EXAMINATION OF COMPLETED WORK

If the Project Officer requests it, the Contractor, at any time before acceptance of the Work, shall remove or uncover such portions of the finished work as may be directed. After examination, the Contractor shall restore said portions of the work to the standard required by the Specifications. Should the work thus exposed or examined prove acceptable, then the uncovering or removing, and the replacing of the covering or making good of the parts removed shall be paid for as extra work but should the work so exposed or examined prove unacceptable, then the uncovering, removing, restoration, and/or replacing shall be at the Contractor's expense.

6. RIGHT TO SUSPEND WORK

The County shall have the authority to suspend the Work, in whole or in part, for such periods and such reasons as the County may deem necessary or desirable. Any such suspension shall be in writing to the Contractor and the Contractor shall obey such order immediately and not resume the Work until so ordered in writing by the County. No such suspension of the Work shall be the basis for a claim by the Contractor for any increase in the Contract Amount provided that the suspension is for a reasonable time under the circumstances then existing. If the suspension of Work is caused by the County's belief that non-conforming work is being installed, and subsequent investigation proves that the Work was non-conforming, the Contractor shall not be awarded additional time or costs.

7. RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK

If the Contractor defaults or neglects to carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails within a ten-day period after receipt of written notice from the County, or such shorter time as may be reasonable under the circumstances, to commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the County may, without prejudice to other remedies the County may have, correct such deficiencies. In such case an appropriate Change Order shall be issued deducting from payments then or thereafter due the Contractor the reasonable cost of correcting such deficiencies, including County's expenses, including additional architect or engineering costs necessary by Contractor's default, neglect or failure. If payments then or thereafter due the Contractor are not sufficient to cover such amounts, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the County.

8. SUPERINTENDENCE BY CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall keep a competent superintendent and any necessary assistants on the Work site at all times during progress of the Work and such persons shall be satisfactory to the Project Officer. The superintendent shall not be changed, except on the Project Officer's determination the superintendent is no longer satisfactory or except with the consent of the Project officer where the superintendent proves to be unsatisfactory to the Contractor or ceases to be in the Contractor's employment. If requested by the County, the superintendent must be replaced within 7 calendar days of Project Officer's written notice. The superintendent shall represent the Contractor in the Contractor's absence and all directions given to him shall be as binding as if given to the Contractor. In general, instructions by the Project Officer shall be confirmed in writing, and always upon written request from the Contractor. The Contractor shall at all times

enforce strict discipline and good order among the workers performing under this Contract and shall not employ any person on the Work not reasonably proficient in the work assigned. Persons permitted to perform Work under Contractor or any subcontractor or sub-subcontractor shall meet all employment eligibility, safety training, security or drug/alcohol testing requirements required by law or by Owner. Any person not complying with all such requirements shall be immediately removed from the Site.

9. DRUG-FREE POLICY

The Contractor is responsible for ensuring that the Site remains a drug-free site. Contractor will require that employees undergo random drug/alcohol screening on a quarterly interval. Any employee who fails the test must be removed from the Site immediately. Random screening shall be performed by a third party licensed to do so in the Commonwealth of Virginia. The Contractor must provide proof that the quarterly drug testing is performed to the Project Officer on a quarterly basis. The Contractor shall provide its random testing schedule to the Project Officer within 30 days of Notice to Proceed. The Contractor shall include this provision in every subcontract relating to this Contract. Any infraction by an employee of the Drug-Free policy shall be reported to the Project Officer within 24 hours and the employee shall be removed from the County project.

10. PERFORMANCE OF WORK BY THE CONTRACTOR

The Contractor shall perform on site, and with its own organization, at least ten percent (10%) of the total direct labor and at least ten percent (10%) of the total work in place to be performed under the Contract. Prior to award, the Contractor must demonstrate to the Project Officer's satisfaction that both of these standards will be met during contract performance. Labor and work to be counted when determining whether the Contractor has met the self-performance requirement shall not include any work that the Contractor performs under the supervision of a subcontractor.

The self-performance percentage may be reduced by an Amendment to the Contract, if during performance of the Work, the Contractor requests a reduction, and the Project Officer determines that the reduction would be to the advantage of the County.

11. LANDS BY COUNTY

The County shall provide the lands shown on the Drawings upon which the Work under the Contract is to be performed and to be used for rights-of-way and for access. In case all of the lands, rights-of-way or easements have not been obtained as herein contemplated before construction begins, the Contractor shall begin its work on such lands and rights-of-way as the County may have previously acquired.

12. LANDS BY CONTRACTOR

If the Contractor requires additional land for temporary construction facilities and for storage of materials and equipment other than the areas available on the site or right-of-way, or as otherwise furnished by the County, the Contractor shall provide such other lands and access thereto entirely at the Contractor's own expense and without liability to the County. The Contractor shall not enter upon private property for any purpose without written permission. The Contractor shall provide copies of all agreements to the County and shall include language in the agreement indemnifying and holding harmless the County for any damages, repairs, restoration

or fees associated with the use of the property. Upon termination of the agreement, the Contractor shall provide to the County, a fully executed release from the property owner.

13. PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY

- a. The Contractor shall continuously maintain protection of all its work from damage and shall protect the County's property from damage or loss arising in connection with this Contract. The Contractor shall make good any such damage or loss, except such as may be caused by agents or employees of the County.
- b. The Contractor shall not place upon the Work, or any part thereof, any loads which are not consistent with the design strength of that portion of the Work.
- c. The Contractor shall be responsible for the preservation of all public and private property, trees, monuments, etc., along and adjacent to the street and/or right-of-way, and shall use every precaution to prevent damage to pipes, conduits and other underground structures, curbs, pavements, etc., except those to be removed or abandoned in place and shall protect carefully from disturbance or damage all monuments and property markers until an authorized agent has witnessed or otherwise referenced their location and shall not remove them until directed. Any damage which occurs by reason of the operations under this Contract shall be completely repaired by the Contractor at the Contractor's expense.
- d. The Contractor shall shore, brace, underpin, secure, and protect, as may be necessary, all foundations and other parts of existing structures adjacent to, adjoining, and in the vicinity of the site that may be affected in any way by excavations or other operations connected with the work required under this Contract. The Contractor shall be responsible for giving any and all required notices to owners or occupants of any adjoining or adjacent property or other relevant parties before commencement of any work. The Contractor shall indemnify and save the County harmless from any damages on account of settlements or loss of all damages for which the County may become liable in consequence of such injury or damage to adjoining and adjacent structures and their premises.
- e. In an emergency affecting the safety of life or of the Work, or of adjoining property, the Contractor, without special instruction or authorization from the Project Officer or designee, or County, is hereby permitted to act, at the Contractor's discretion, to prevent such threatened loss or injury, and the Contractor shall so act without appeal, if so instructed or authorized.

14. SEPARATE CONTRACTS

- a. The County reserves the right to let other contracts in connection with this Project. The Contractor shall afford other contractors' reasonable access to the Project, including the opportunity for the delivery and storage of their materials and the execution of their work, and shall properly connect and coordinate its work with the work of other such contractors.
- b. If any part of the Contractor's work depends, for proper execution or results, upon the work of any other contractor, the Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to the Project Officer any defects in such work that renders it unsuitable for such proper execution and results. The Contractor's failure to so inspect and report shall constitute an acceptance of the

other contractor's work as fit and proper for the reception of the Contractor's work, except as to defects which may develop in other contractor's work after its execution.

c. If the Contractor or any of the Contractor's subcontractors or employees cause loss or damage to any separate contractor on the Work, the Contractor agrees to settle or make every effort to settle or compromise with such separate contractor. If such separate contractor sues the County on account of any loss so sustained, the County shall notify the Contractor, who shall indemnify and save the County harmless against any expense, claim or judgment arising therefrom, including reasonable attorney's fees.

15. SUBCONTRACTS

- a. Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall, within fifteen (15) calendar days after written notification by the Project Officer, provide the names of all subcontractors proposed for the principal parts of the Work and for such others as requested by the Project Officer and shall not employ any subcontractor that the Project Officer may, within a reasonable time, object to as incompetent or unfit after an appropriate determination of the subcontractor's ability. No proposed subcontractor will be disapproved except for cause.
- b. The Contractor shall make no substitutions for any subcontractor previously selected and approved unless first submitted to the County for approval.
- c. The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the County for the acts and omissions of the Contractor's subcontractors as the Contractor is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor.
- d. The Contractor shall cause appropriate provisions to be inserted in all subcontracts relative to the Work to bind subcontractors to the Contractor by the terms of the General Conditions of the Contract, Special provisions and other documents comprising the Contract insofar as such documents are applicable to the work of subcontractors.
- e. Nothing contained in the Contract shall be construed to create any contractual relation between any subcontractor and the County, nor shall it establish any obligation on the part of the County to pay to or see to the payment of any sums to any subcontractor.
- f. If requested by the County, the Contractor shall replace any subcontractor at no cost to the County within 7 calendar days of the Project Officer's written notice. No additional time or compensation will be provided in the event a subcontractor is removed due to non-compliance of the requirements outlined within the Contract.

16. ELIMINATED ITEMS

The Project Officer may, upon written notice to the Contractor, eliminate item(s) from the Contract. Payment shall not be made for such item(s) so eliminated; except that the Contractor will be compensated for the actual cost of any work performed for the installation of such item(s) and the net cost of materials purchased before the item(s) was eliminated from the Contract, including freight and tax costs, as evidenced by invoice. If the County notifies the Contractor of such elimination at least fifteen (15) calendar days prior to scheduled installation of such item(s), then no additional compensation will be made for overhead or anticipated profit.

D. MATERIALS AND WORKMANSHIP

1. MATERIALS FURNISHED BY THE CONTRACTOR

Unless otherwise specified, all materials and equipment incorporated in the Work under the Contract shall be new. All workmanship shall be accomplished by persons qualified in the respective trades.

2. IBC AND VUSBC REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor certifies that all material supplied or used under this Contract meets all current International Building Code (IBC) requirements and the requirements of the Virginia Uniform Statewide Building Code (VUSBC); and further certifies that, if the material delivered or used in the performance of the Work is found to be deficient in any of the applicable state or national code requirements, all costs necessary to bring the material into compliance with the requirements shall be borne by the Contractor. The County shall be entitled to offset such costs against any sums owed by the County to the Contractor under this Contract.

3. ADA COMPLIANCE

The Contractor shall ensure that all Work performed under this Agreement is completed in accordance with the Contract Documents, including Work intended to meet the accessibility requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

The Contractor is not required to ascertain whether the Contract Documents meet ADA design standards and guidelines. However, should the Contractor discover any non-conformity with such requirements, the Contractor shall immediately inform the County and its design consultant, if applicable, to allow for corrective action.

The Contractor shall defend and hold the County harmless from any expense or liability arising from the Contractor's non-compliance in meeting its obligations herein. The Contractor shall be responsible for all costs related to permitting delays, redesign, corrective work, and litigation relating to such non-compliance.

The Contractor shall engage a third-party engineering consultant with a minimum of 5 years of proven working knowledge and experience inspecting and verifying ADA compliance of outdoor spaces. A letter shall be provided by the third-party consultant certifying that all the work performed under this agreement is in compliance with the ADA Act.

4. MANUFACTURER'S DIRECTIONS

Manufactured articles, material, and equipment shall be applied, installed, connected, erected, used, cleaned, and conditioned in accordance with the manufacturer's directions, as approved by the Project Officer, unless herein specified to the contrary.

5. WARRANTY

Unless otherwise specified, all material provided to the County shall be fully guaranteed by the Contractor against manufacturing defects within the period of the manufacturer's standard warranty. Such defects shall be corrected by the Contractor at no expense to the County.

The Contractor shall provide all manufacturer's warranties to the Project Officer by the date of Final Completion.

Unless otherwise specified by the Contract Documents, all work is guaranteed by the Contractor against defects resulting from the use of inferior or faulty materials, or inferior or faulty workmanship, or work not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents for one (1) year from the date of Final Acceptance of the work by the County in addition to and irrespective of any manufacturer's or supplier's warranty. No date other than the date of Final Acceptance shall govern the effective date of the Guaranty or Warranty, unless that date is agreed upon by the County and the Contractor in advance and in a signed writing. The Contractor shall promptly correct any defective work or materials after receipt of a written notice from the County to do so. If the Contractor fails to proceed promptly or use its best efforts and due diligence to complete such compliance as quickly as possible, the County may have the materials or work corrected and the Contractor and its Sureties shall be liable for all expenses and costs incurred by the County.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to establish a period of limitations with respect to other obligations the Contractor may have under this Contract.

6. INSPECTION, ACCEPTANCE AND TITLE OF MATERIALS

Inspection and acceptance of materials by the County will be at the work site in Arlington County, Virginia, and within ten (10) calendar days of delivery unless otherwise provided for in the Contract. The County will not inspect, accept, or pay for any materials stored off-site by the Contractor. Title and risk of loss or damage to all items shall be the responsibility of the Contractor until Final Acceptance by the County. The County's right of inspection shall not be deemed to relieve the Contractor of its obligation to ensure that all articles, materials and supplies are consistent with specifications and instructions and are fit for their intended use. The County reserves the right to conduct any tests or inspections it may deem advisable to assure that goods or services conform to the specification. The Contractor shall be responsible for maintaining all materials and supplies in the condition in which they were accepted until they are used in the Work.

7. <u>CONTRACTOR'S TITLE TO MATERIALS</u>

No materials or supplies for the Work shall be purchased by the Contractor or any subcontractor subject to any chattel mortgage or under a conditional sale or other agreement by which an interest is retained by the seller. The Contractor warrants that it has good title to, and that it shall require all subcontractors to warrant that they have good title to, all materials and supplies for which the Contractor invoices for payment.

8. <u>TITLE TO MATERIALS AND WORK COVERED BY PARTIAL PAYMENTS</u>

All material and work covered by partial payments made by the County shall become the property solely of the County at the time the partial payment is made. However, risk of loss or damage to all items shall be the responsibility of the Contractor until Final Acceptance by the County. This provision shall not be construed as relieving the Contractor from having sole responsibility for all materials and work upon which payments have been made and for the restoration of any damaged work or replacement or repair at the County's option of any damaged materials. This provision shall not be construed as a waiver of the County's right to require fulfillment of all terms of the Agreement, including full rights under the terms of the Warranty provisions of the Agreement, nor shall payment indicate acceptance of the materials or Work.

9. CUTTING, PATCHING, AND DIGGING

The Contractor shall do all cutting, fitting, or patching of the Contractor's work that may be required to make its several parts come together properly and to receive or be received by work of other contractors as shown upon or reasonably implied by the Drawings and Specifications for the completed project, as the Project Officer may direct. The Contractor shall not endanger any work by cutting, digging, or otherwise, and shall not cut or alter the work of any other contract except with the consent of the Project Officer.

10. REJECTED WORK AND MATERIALS

- a. Any of the Work or materials, goods or equipment which do not conform to the requirements of the Contract Documents, are not equal to samples approved by the Project Officer or are in any way unsatisfactory or unsuited to the purpose for which they are intended, shall be rejected and replaced at the Contractor's expense and to the satisfaction of the County. Any defective work, whether the result of poor workmanship, use of defective materials, damage through carelessness or any other cause, shall be removed and the work shall be re-executed by the Contractor at no cost to the County. The fact that the Project Officer may have previously overlooked such defective materials or work shall not constitute acceptance of any part of it.
- b. If the Contractor fails to proceed at once with the replacement of rejected materials and/or the correction of defective workmanship, when notified to do so by the Project Officer, the County may, by contract or otherwise, replace such material or correct such workmanship and charge the cost to the Contractor. At its discretion, the County shall be entitled to offset such expenses against any sums owed by the County to the Contractor under the Contract. This clause applies during the Contract and during any warranty or guarantee period.
- c. If the Project Officer and County deem it expedient not to require correction of work which has been damaged or not done in accordance with the Contract, an appropriate adjustment to the Contract Price may be made therefor.

11. HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

Arlington County is subject to the Hazard Communication Standard, 29 CFR §1910.1200 (Standard). The Contractor agrees that it shall provide or cause to be provided Safety Data Sheets ("SDS") required under the Standard for all hazardous materials supplied to the County or used in the performance of the Work. Such SDS information shall be delivered to the County no later than the time of actual delivery of any hazardous materials to the County or use of such material in the performance of Work under the Contract by the Contractor or its subcontractors, whichever occurs first. Container labeling meeting the requirements of the Standard shall be appropriately affixed to the shipping or internal containers. The County reserves the right to refuse shipments of hazardous materials not appropriately labeled, or when SDS information has not been received prior to or at the time of receipt of the shipment for use by the County or for use by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, or whenever the material is delivered in a manner inconsistent with any applicable law or regulation. Any expenses incurred due to the refusal or rejection of SDS information are the responsibility of the Contractor. The Contractor shall comply with all federal, state, and local laws governing the storage, transportation, and use of toxic and hazardous materials. The Contractor shall maintain on site an up to date and complete SDS binder for all materials used and delivered to the Project. The County Project Officer or designee shall be allowed access to the SDS book at all times.

12. HAZARDOUS WASTE

Hazardous Waste Generator/Hazardous Waste Disposal: The County Board of Arlington County, Virginia and the Contractor shall be listed as Co-generators. The Contractor shall assume all the duties pertaining to the Waste Generator, including signing the Waste Shipment Record ("WSR") and manifest. The Contractor shall supply the County Project Officer with the executed original Owner's Copy of the WSR, as required by applicable regulatory agencies within 35 days from the time the waste was accepted by the initial waste transporter, and prior to request for final payment. A separate WSR shall be submitted for each shipment to the disposal site.

Delayed Waste Shipment Records: The Contractor shall report in writing to the EPA Region III office within 45 days if an executed copy of the WSR is not received from the operator of the disposal site. The report to the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) regional office shall include a copy of the original WSR and a cover letter signed by the Contractor stating the efforts taken to locate the hazardous waste shipment and the results of those efforts.

Temporary Hazardous Waste Storage Prohibited: The Contractor shall not temporarily store hazardous waste unless pre-approved by the County in writing. If so approved, hazardous waste stored off-site in a temporary facility shall be monitored and records shall be kept on the number of containers, size, and weight. The Contractor shall inform the County when the hazardous waste is to be transported to the final disposal site. The County has the right to inspect the temporary site at any time. The Contractor shall submit copies of all relevant manifests, Waste Shipment Record(s), and landfill receipts to the County Project Officer prior to the request for final payment. All paperwork shall be signed by the Contractor and disposal site operator as required.

13. ASBESTOS

Whenever and wherever during the course of performing any Work under this Contract the Contractor discovers the presence of asbestos or suspects that asbestos is present, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, secure the area, notify the County Project Officer immediately and await positive identification of the suspect material. During the downtime in such a case, the Contractor shall not disturb any surrounding surfaces but shall protect the area with suitable dust covers. Work shall not proceed without an Asbestos-Related Work Authorization executed by the County Asbestos Program Manager.

14. PROHIBITION AGAINST ASBESTOS CONTAINING MATERIALS

No goods or equipment provided to the County or construction material installed shall contain asbestos. If a Contractor or supplier provides or installs any goods, equipment, supplies, or materials that contain asbestos in violation of this prohibition, the Contractor shall be responsible for all costs related to the immediate removal and legal disposal of the goods, equipment or materials containing asbestos and replacement with a County-approved alternate. The Contractor shall be responsible for all goods, equipment, supplies or materials installed or provided by any of its employees, agents or subcontractors in connection with the work under this Contract. The Contractor shall also reimburse to the County all costs of such goods, equipment, supplies or materials installed if not corrected by the Contractor. If the Contractor fails to remove and legally dispose of the asbestos-containing goods, equipment or construction materials within ninety (90) days from the date of notice by the County, the County shall remove and dispose of the asbestos-containing goods, equipment or construction materials at the Contractor's expense. The County shall be entitled to offset such expenses against any sums owed by the County to the Contractor under this Contract.

E. LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY AND PUBLIC SAFETY

1. MAINTENANCE OF TRAFFIC

The Contractor shall conduct its operations in a manner that will ensure that all modes of traffic (vehicular, bicycle, pedestrian) will be uninterrupted except as approved by the County. At the close of each workday, the area of work shall be confined to the smallest area possible, but in no event larger than the area designated in the Construction Documents, so that the maximum use of the street and sidewalk will be restored and the hazard to traffic reduced to the minimum. No excavation shall remain open within the roadway or sidewalk without the approval of the County except when the excavation can be safely bridged with the use of steel plates or other materials acceptable to the County. When areas of excavation do remain open, the area shall be barricaded, and warning signs shall be posted. Approved safety barriers may be required. Contractor shall be responsible for any permits required for work in Right of Way (ROW) areas.

At all times the Contractor shall use the personnel and traffic control signs and devices necessary to comply with Part VI of the "National Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices, latest edition." During the progress of the work when the street may be obstructed to any extent by construction equipment or construction operations, in addition to the signs and barricades, special workers, equipped with VDOT required "STOP\SLOW" double sided traffic control paddles, shall be designated by the Contractor to direct traffic. These workers so designated shall not be assigned to any other duties while engaged in directing traffic. The Contractor has sole responsibility for ensuring that its operations are conducted in a safe manner and notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, shall fully indemnify Arlington County, its officers, agents and employees for any damage or injury related to traffic operations which is caused by negligent or otherwise improper or deficient performance under the Contract or nonperformance of the terms of the Contract. All personnel, signs, barricades and any other items necessary for the maintenance of traffic and safety shall be provided by the Contractor. No separate payment shall be made by the County for Maintenance of Traffic, unless otherwise specified.

2. SAFETY AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION

The Contractor shall comply with, and ensure that the Contractor's employees and subcontractors comply with, all current applicable local, state and federal policies, regulations and standards relating to safety and health, including, by way of illustration and not limitation, the U.S. Department of Labor's Occupational Safety and Hazard Administration (OSHA) 29 CFR, 1926, Construction Industry Regulations, the standards of the Virginia Occupational Safety and Health program of the Department of Labor and Industry for General Industry and for the Construction Industry, the Federal Environmental Protection Agency Standards, and the applicable standards of the Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.

The Contractor shall provide, or cause to be provided, all technical expertise, qualified personnel, equipment, tools, and material to safely accomplish the Work specified to be performed by the Contractor and subcontractor(s).

The Contractor shall identify to the County Project Officer at least one on-site person who is the Contractor's competent, qualified, and authorized person on the worksite and who is, by training or experience, familiar with policies, regulations, and standards applicable to the work being performed. The competent, qualified, and authorized person must be capable of identifying existing and predictable hazards in the surroundings or working conditions which are unsanitary, hazardous, or dangerous to employees; shall be capable of ensuring that applicable safety

regulations are complied with; and shall have the authority and responsibility to take prompt corrective measures, which may include removal of the Contractor's personnel from the work site.

The Contractor shall provide to the County, at the County's request, a copy of the Contractor's written safety policies and safety procedures applicable to the scope of work. Failure to provide this information within seven (7) calendar days of the County's request may result in cancellation of the Contract.

The Contractor shall exercise proper precaution at all times for the protection of persons and property and shall be responsible for all injuries to persons and damage to property either on or off the site, which occur as a result of the Contractor's performance of the Work.

The Contractor shall take or cause to be taken such additional safety and health measures as the County may determine to be reasonably necessary. Machinery, equipment, and all hazards shall be guarded in accordance with the safety provisions of the current version of "Manual of Accident Prevention" published by the Associated General Contractors of America, Inc., to the extent that such provisions are not in conflict with applicable local laws. The Contractor is directed to the "Rules and Regulations Governing Construction, Demolition and All Excavation" and adopted by the Safety Codes Commission of Virginia, 1966, or latest edition, covering requirements for shoring, bracing, and sheet piling of trench excavations.

3. OVERHEAD HIGH VOLTAGE LINES SAFETY ACT

If any work required herein will be performed within ten (10) feet of an overhead high voltage line, the provisions of Virginia Statute 59.1-406, et. seq., "Overhead High Voltage Line Safety Act" (Act) shall apply. The "person or contractor responsible for the work to be done", as that term is used in the Act, will be interpreted to mean the Contractor. The Contractor shall notify the owner or operator of the high voltage line in the manner prescribed in Section 59.1-411 of the Act in sufficient time prior to the time work is to be commenced to avoid any delays in the work. The County will not pay for lost time, profits, or permit any extension of the work for any delays caused by the failure of the Contractor to make such arrangements in a timely manner. All costs for the work shall be paid by the Contractor. The County shall reimburse the Contractor for the actual reasonable cost paid to the owner or operator of the high voltage line by the Contractor on presentation to the County by the Contractor of original invoices from the owner or operator of the high voltage line in the same manner as for other Contractor invoices submitted for work performed. Retention, if applicable to the Contract, shall not be withheld from the payment to the Contractor by the County. No processing, administrative, or other charges above the actual amount charged by the owner or operator of the high voltage line shall be paid to the Contractor by the County.

4. SANITARY PROVISIONS

The Contractor shall provide and maintain such sanitary accommodations for the use of the Contractor's employees and those of its subcontractors as may be necessary to comply with the requirements and regulations of the local and state departments of health and where additional accommodations are necessary to maintain a reasonably sanitary environment, then such additional accommodations shall be made as determined by the Project Officer.

5. DAMAGES CAUSED BY WORK

Any damage resulting from Work performed by the Contractor under this Contract shall be repaired to the County's satisfaction at the Contractor's expense.

6. <u>CLEANING UP</u>

The Contractor shall remove and legally dispose of, as frequently as necessary, all refuse, rubbish, scrap materials and debris from the site to the extent they are the result of the Contractor's operations to the end that the site of the Work shall present a neat, orderly, and workmanlike appearance at all times. At completion of the Work, but before Final Acceptance, the Contractor shall remove and legally dispose of all surplus material, falsework, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, and debris of every nature resulting from the Contractor's operations, and put the site in a neat, orderly condition; if the Contractor fails to do so, the County shall have the right to remove and legally dispose of the surplus material, falsework, temporary structures, including foundations thereof, and debris, put the site in a neat, orderly condition, and charge the cost to the Contractor.

F. PROGRESS AND COMPLETION OF THE WORK

1. NOTICE TO PROCEED

Within thirty (30) calendar days of the Award Date, the Contractor shall be given written Notice to Proceed with the Work. Such Notice to Proceed shall state the date on which the Work is to be commenced, and every calendar day thereafter shall be counted in computing the actual Time for Completion.

2. TIME FOR COMPLETION

It is hereby understood and mutually agreed by and between the Contractor and the County that the Commencement Date, the rate of progress, and the Time for Completion of the Work to be done hereunder are essential conditions of the Contract. The Contractor agrees that the Work shall be started promptly upon the Commencement Date and the Work shall be performed regularly, diligently, and uninterruptedly at a rate of progress that will ensure full completion thereof in the shortest length of time consistent with good workmanship, within the Time for Completion specified in the Contract Documents.

3. SCHEDULE OF COMPLETION

Unless otherwise specified, the Contractor shall within five (5) calendar days prior to the preconstruction meeting, submit schedules which show the order in which the Contractor proposes to carry on the Work in accordance with the Specifications. When the Work is behind the schedule, the County may require the Contractor to prepare and submit, at no extra cost to the County, a recovery schedule indicating by what means the Contractor intends to regain compliance with the schedule. The recovery schedule must be submitted to the County for review within five (5) calendar days of the County's written demand.

4. CONDITIONS FOR COMPLETION

- a. FINAL COMPLETION: The Work will be considered Finally Complete when the provisions of Technical Specifications Section 017700, Closeout Procedures, have been met, in addition to the following:
 - 1) Pre-final inspection shall be conducted-two weeks prior to Final Completion; and

- 2) The Project Officer has agreed that the condition of the Work warrants Final Completion; and
- 3) All construction deficiencies and punch list items have been closed and all construction deficiencies corrected and accepted by the Project Officer; and
- 4) All spare parts and attic stock have been delivered, stored in an orderly manner in a space designated by the Project Officer, and a complete inventory list has been verified and accepted by the Project Officer; and
- 5) All warranty certificates and contact information for parties providing warranties have been delivered and accepted by the Project Officer; and
- 6) All final Operating and Maintenance manuals have been delivered and accepted by the Project Officer; and
- 7) All final As-Built Drawings in .PDF format on a CD and one full-size paper copy have been delivered and accepted by the Project Officer.

5. USE OF COMPLETED PORTIONS

The County shall have the right to take possession of and use any completed or partially completed portions of the Work, notwithstanding that the time for completing the entire Work or such portions may not have expired; but taking such possession and use shall not be deemed an acceptance of any work not done in accordance with the Contract Documents. If the Contractor claims that such prior use increases the cost or delays the completion of remaining work, or causes refinishing of completed work, the Contractor may submit a claim for compensation or extension of time or both.

G. PAYMENT, CHANGES, CLAIMS, DELAYS

1. PAYMENTS TO CONTRACTOR

The County will make monthly partial payments, less retainage, to the Contractor based upon the Schedule of Values and the work performed during the preceding calendar month as approved by the Project Officer.

The Contractor shall submit a monthly payment application using AIA Form G-702 "Application and Certification for Payment" or equivalent form acceptable to the Project Officer or designee.

The Contractor's application for payment will not be reviewed or processed unless an updated Construction Schedule is attached. The pay application shall also contain a certification by the Contractor that due and payable amounts have been paid by the Contractor, including payments to subcontractors and suppliers, for work which previous payment was received by the Contractor from the County.

The Contractor's application for payment shall indicate the amount of work completed to date in a format consistent with the accepted bid and as indicated below:

a. <u>Lump Sum</u>: If required by this Contract, the Contractor shall provide to the Project Officer a Schedule of Values for each Lump Sum item in the Contract, and the application for payment shall reflect the schedule of values and the amount of work completed in those units.

Otherwise, the application for payment shall reflect the percentage of work completed for each lump sum item.

b. <u>Unit Price</u>: The schedule of unit prices in the accepted bid shall be used as the basis for preparing the estimates for change orders only-

In addition to the amount of work completed to date, the application for payment shall indicate the aggregate of all previous payments for each line item, the retainage previously withheld, and the total payment requested this period.

2. <u>PAYMENT FOR MATERIALS ON SITE</u>

When requested in writing by the Contractor, payment allowances may be made for material secured for use on the Project and secured at the project site. Such payments will only be made for materials scheduled for incorporation into the work within sixty (60) calendar days. Copy of paid invoice for materials shall be provided.

3. <u>STIPULATED PRICE ITEMS</u>

Work on Stipulated Price Items shall be carried out only upon written order by the Project Officer. The payment for a Stipulated Price Item shall be made by the County to the Contractor at the related Unit Price specified in the 'Stipulated Price Items' section of the Bid Form on the same basis as the payment for any other regular Bid Item.

4. PAYMENTS WITHHELD

The Project Officer may withhold or, on account of subsequently discovered evidence, nullify the whole or a part of any certificate for payment to the extent necessary to protect the County from loss on account of defective work not remedied or withhold payment for violation of any contract term or condition not remedied after sufficient notice given to the Contractor.

Any such withholding shall not result in any liability to the Contractor for damages.

5. <u>COUNTY ORDERED CHANGES IN WORK</u>

The County, without invalidating the Contract, may order extra Work or make changes by addition, deletion, or revision in the Work, with the total Contract Amount being adjusted accordingly if applicable. Any change amount that will increase the total Contract Amount will require notice to sureties and require that Performance and Payment bonds be increased by the Contractor. All such work shall be executed under the conditions of the original Contract, except that modification of the Time for Completion caused thereby shall be made at the time of approving such change.

a. The Project Officer or designee shall have authority to make minor changes in the Work by verbal order when such changes do not involve extra cost and are not inconsistent with the purpose of the Project. Otherwise, except in an emergency endangering life or property, no extra Work or change shall be made unless in pursuance of a written Construction Change

Directive or Change Order from the County signed or countersigned by the Project Officer or designee, and no claim for an addition to the Contract Amount of Time for Completion shall be valid unless so ordered.

- b. The Contractor shall review any County requested or directed change and shall respond in writing within ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the proposed change, or such other reasonable time as the County may direct, stating the effect of the proposed change upon Contractor's work, including any increase or decrease in Contract time and price. The Contractor shall furnish the County an itemized breakdown of the quantities and prices used in computing the proposed change.
- c. Unit Price Items: The County expressly reserves the right, except as may be otherwise specifically limited, to increase or decrease quantities of work for which the Contractor provided a unit price in the bid form, as the County deems necessary or desirable to complete the Work covered in this Contract. Increases in such quantities shall be performed by the Contractor at the cost provided in the bid form.
- d. Other Work: Any change in Work which is not covered by Unit Prices in the bid form shall be determined in one or more of the following ways: (a) by estimate and acceptance by the County in a lump sum; (b) by cost and fixed fee; (c) by time and materials; or (d) by any other method permitted under the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution.
- e. If none of the aforementioned methods is agreed upon, the Contractor shall proceed with the Work without delay provided the Contractor receives a Construction Change Directive. In such case, the Contractor shall keep and present in such form as the Project Officer or designee may direct, a correct account of the cost, together with vouchers. The Project Officer or designee shall be permitted to verify such records on a daily basis and may require such additional records as are necessary to determine the cost of the change to the Work. The Project Officer or designee shall certify to the amount due to the Contractor, including a reasonable lump sum allowance for overhead and profit. A complete accounting of the extra cost shall be made within fifteen (15) days after completion of the Work involved in the claim.
- f. A cost proposal for a change in the Work shall provide a complete breakdown itemizing the estimated quantities and costs of labor, materials, and equipment (base cost) required in addition to any markup used. The cost proposal for the change in the Work and the Contractor's signature on the cost proposal is its agreement that the adjustments in Contract Price and/or Time stipulated in this change order proposal constitutes full, complete and final compensation for all costs and time associated (direct and indirect), impacts and/or delays arising out of, or incidental thereto, the applicable work as indicated herein. The Contractor further agrees to waive all rights to make any further claim arising out of or as a result of this change. All terms and conditions of the Contract shall remain unchanged and in full force and effect.
- g. The allowable percentage markups for overhead and profit in the cost proposal for a change to the Work performed by the Contractor's own forces or performed by the Subcontractor shall be negotiated based on the nature, size, and complexity of the Work involved, but shall not exceed the percentages for each category listed below:

- 1) Subcontractor's markup for overhead and profit for the work it performs in a change to the Work shall be a maximum of fifteen (15%).
- 2) Contractor's markup for overhead and profit on the Subcontractor's base cost in a change to the Work shall be a maximum of ten percent (10%).
- 3) Contractor's markup for overhead and profit, including bonds and insurance, for work it self-performs in a change to the Work shall be a maximum of fifteen percent (15%).
- 4) The markup for overhead and profit of a Sub-contractor to a Subcontractor of the Contractor at any tier on a change to the Work it performs shall be a maximum of fifteen percent (15%). The Contractor and all intervening tiers of Subcontractors' markups on such Sub-subcontractor's base cost in the change to the Work shall not exceed a total of ten percent (10%).
- h. Base Cost is defined as the total of labor, material, and equipment costs. It does not include markup for overhead and profit. The labor costs include only the costs of employees directly constructing or installing the change in the Work and exclude the costs of employees coordinating or managing the Work.
- i. The allowable percentage markups for overhead and profit stated above shall compensate the Contractor, Subcontractor, and Sub-subcontractor for all other costs associated with or relating to the change to the Work, including by way of illustration and not limitation, general conditions, supervision, field engineering, coordination, insurance, bond(s), use of small tools, incidental job costs, and all other general and administrative home and field office expenses.
- j. Allowable costs for changes in the Work shall not include Home Office expenses, including payroll costs for the Contractor's officers, executives, administrators, project managers, estimators, clerks' timekeepers, and other administrative personnel employed by the Contractor, whether at the Site or in the Contractor's principal or branch office for general administration of the Work. These costs are deemed overhead included in the percentage markups in Subsection (d) above.
- k. If the change to the Work also changes the Time for Completion, by adding days to perform the Work, an itemized accounting of the following Site direct overhead expenses for the change to the time may be considered as allowable costs for compensation in addition to the base cost indicated above.
 - 1) Site superintendent's pro-rata salary; and
 - 2) Temporary site office trailer expense; and
 - 3) Temporary site utilities, including basic telephone service, electricity, heat, water, and sanitary/toilet facilities.

All other direct and indirect overhead expenses are considered covered by and included in Subsection (d) markups above.

I. If the Contractor requests an extension to the Time for Completion due to changes in the Work, it must provide to the Project Officer adequate documentation substantiating its entitlement for the time extension. The documentation must demonstrate an anticipated actual increase in the time required to complete the Work beyond that allowed by the Contract as adjusted by prior changes to the Work, not just an increase or decrease in the time needed to complete a portion of the total Work. In the event a Critical Path Method (CPM) schedule is required by the Contract, no extension to the Time for Completion shall be granted unless, and then only to the extent that, the additional or change to the Work increases the length of the critical path beyond the Time for Completion as demonstrated on the approved CPM schedule or bar chart schedule.

6. CLAIMS FOR EXTRA COST

If the Contractor claims that any event will give rise to a claim for an increase in the Contract Amount or that instructions from the Project Officer, by drawings or otherwise, will incur the Contractor extra cost under this Contract, then, except in emergencies endangering life or property, the Contractor shall give written notice thereof before proceeding to execute the work. Said notice shall be given promptly enough to avoid delaying the Work and in no instance later than ten (10) calendar days after the event or receipt of such instruction. The Contractor's notice must provide to the Project Officer the amount of additional compensation claimed, together with the basis therefor and documentation supporting the claimed amount. No such claim shall be valid unless so made. If the Project Officer agrees that such instructions involve extra cost to the Contractor, any additional compensation will be determined by one of the methods provided in "Changes in Work" section of these General Conditions. Except as otherwise specifically provided, no claims for extra cost shall be allowed unless timely notice is given by the Contractor, as required by this Section.

7. DAMAGES FOR DELAY; EXTENSION OF TIME FOR COMPLETION OTHER THAN FOR WEATHER

The Contractor's relief for any claim for delay which is unreasonable and caused by the acts and omissions of the County, or due to causes within the County's control shall be an extension of the Time for Completion and/or the Contractor's direct costs which result from the delay, but only to the extent any damages for delay were actually caused by the County. The Contractor must give the Project Officer written notice of such delay and damages at the time they were incurred, but in no event later than three calendar days following the perceived onset of the delay. The Contractor's written notice shall specify the nature of the delay claimed by the Contractor, the cause of the delay, and the impact of the delay on the Contractor's work schedule.

If the Contractor is entitled to compensation for delay which is unreasonable, or caused by the acts and omissions of the County, or due to causes within the County's control, and where there is no change in the Work, an itemized accounting of the following direct site overhead expenses will be considered as allowable costs to be used in determining the compensation due the Contractor:

- a. Site superintendent pro-rata salary, temporary site office expense, temporary site facilities, and temporary site utilities including basic telephone service, electricity, heat, water, and sanitary/toilets.
- b. A fifteen percent (15%) markup of these expenses will be allowed to compensate the Contractor for home office and other direct or indirect overhead expenses.

If the Contractor submits a claim for damages pursuant to this Section, the Contractor shall be liable to the County for a percentage of all costs incurred by the County in investigating, analyzing, negotiating and litigating the claim, which percentage shall be equal to the percentage of the Contractor's total delay claim that is determined through litigation to be false or to have no basis in law or fact. (Virginia Code §2.2-4335).

The Contractor's sole relief on any claims for delay which is reasonable, or not caused by the acts or omissions of the County, or due to causes not within the County's control, or Force Majeure, shall be an extension of the Time for Completion, provided the Contractor gave the Project Officer timely written notice at the inception of such delay.

No extension of the Time for Completion or additional compensation if applicable will be granted for any delay unless the Contractor demonstrates the claimed delay directly impacts the critical path of the Work, and any float has been consumed. Claims for compensation for direct costs which result from delay must be substantiated by adequate documentation clearly showing that the Work delayed was on the critical path, and that the additional costs incurred by the Contractor are directly attributable to the delay in the Work claimed.

No extension of the Time for Completion shall be granted for any delay if the Contractor failed to give timely written notice to the Project Officer at the inception of the delay and at the time the damages were incurred. The Contractor's complete submittal for a time extension shall be submitted no later than thirty (30) calendar days after cessation of the delay or within such longer period as the County may agree in writing to allow. The Contractor's notice to the County shall specify the nature of the delay claimed by the Contractor, the cause of the delay, and the impact of the delay on the Contractor's Work schedule.

8. TIME EXTENSIONS FOR WEATHER

The Contractor's sole relief on any claims for delay which is caused by abnormal weather shall be an extension of the Time for Completion provided the Contractor gave the Project Officer timely written notice at the inception of such delay and provided the weather affected the critical path. A fully documented claim for a time extension under this section must be submitted no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the cessation of the delay. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility solely to provide the necessary documentation to satisfy the Project Officer that the weather conditions claimed were encountered.

The Time for Completion will not be extended due to inclement weather conditions that are normal, as defined below, for Arlington County. The Time for Completion includes an allowance for workdays (based on five (5) day workweek) which according to historical data may not be suitable for construction work. The Contractor may request extension to the Time for Completion if it can demonstrate unusual and disruptive weather conditions per the requirements below:

- a. That one or more of the Weather Conditions listed below was encountered; and,
- b. The occurrence of the Weather Condition(s) resulted in an inability to prosecute work which would have otherwise been performed on the day(s) the Weather Condition(s) occurred; and,
- c. The work which was not able to be completed was on the Critical Path and could not be completed **only** due to the Weather Condition(s) claimed.

The Project Officer will determine the Contractor's entitlement to an extension of the Time for Completion. A time extension of no more than one (1) day will be granted for one (1) day of lost work which satisfies the requirements above, regardless of the number of Weather Conditions encountered. The Contractor's sole relief shall be an extension of the Time for Completion and no claim for an increase in Contract Amount will be allowed.

The Weather Conditions listed below will be the only basis for consideration by the County, based upon the requirements listed above, as an extension of the Time for Completion due to inclement weather or weather-related site conditions.

Weather Condition #1: Unusually Heavy Precipitation - Figure 1 illustrates the anticipated monthly inclement weather due to precipitation (Rain Days). If the number of days with precipitation in excess of 0.10", as recorded at Washington Reagan National Airport, exceeds the anticipated Rain Days, the Contractor will be entitled to an extension of one (1) day on the Time for Completion for every day in excess of the Rain Days illustrated in Figure 1. The anticipated value of Rain Days for partial months at the beginning and end of the Contract shall be evaluated on a pro-rated basis.

Ave	erage	e days	with p	recipita	ation of	0.1″ o	r more					
Jar	۱	Feb	Mar	Apr	May	Jun	Jul	Aug	Sep	Oct	Nov	Dec
7		6	7	6	8	6	7	6	6	5	6	6

FIGURE 1

Weather days are not exclusive to the individual months that they represent in Figure 1. If weather days are not used in a previous month(s) they can be used to offset weather delays in subsequent months. This will be reviewed on a case by case basis and is subject to reconciliation at the end of the Project.

Condition #2: Temperature – The Contractor may be entitled to an additional day for every day that the recorded high temperature at Washington Reagan National Airport is 32 degrees Fahrenheit or less, that has not already been incurred under Weather Condition #1 above. This condition does not apply to vertical construction as defined by the Arlington County Vertical Construction Standards.

9. RELEASE OF LIENS

The County, before making any payment including Final Payment, shall require the Contractor to furnish a complete release of all liens arising out of this Contract, or receipts in full in lieu thereof, and if required in either case, an affidavit that so far as the Contractor has knowledge or information, the releases and receipts include all the labor and material for which a lien could be filed. The Contractor may, if any subcontractor refuses to furnish a release or receipt in full, furnish a bond satisfactory to the County, to indemnify him against any lien. If any lien remains unsatisfied after all payments have been made, the Contractor shall refund to the County all money that the latter may be compelled to pay in discharging such lien. However, the County may make payments in part or in full to the Contractor without requiring the releases or receipts, and the payments so made shall not impair the obligations of any Surety or Sureties on any bond or bonds furnished under this Contract.

10. FINAL PAYMENT

After the Contractor has completed all Work and corrections to the satisfaction of the Project Officer and delivered all maintenance and operating instructions, schedules, quantities, bonds, certificates of inspection maintenance record documents, and other items required as final payment submittal documents, the Contractor may make application for final payment following the procedure for progress payments. The Final Application for Payment shall be accompanied by all documents required in the Contract, including a complete and signed copy of the Final Payment Release Form as follows:

RELEASE AND REQUEST FOR FINAL PAYMENT

CONTRACT NUMBER: _____ CONTRACTOR NAME: _____

FINAL PAYMENT AMOUNT:

The Contractor hereby requests final payment in the amount indicated on the above referenced Contract. The Contractor agrees that its acceptance of final payment releases and forever discharges Arlington County and its officers, employees, servants and agents from any and all actions, claims, demands and liability of whatever nature now existing or which may hereafter arise as a result of or in connection with the above referenced Contract.

The Contractor certifies that all of the debts for labor, materials, and equipment incurred in connection with the above referenced Contract have been fully paid.

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE: _____ DATE: _____

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA

COUNTY OF ARLINGTON

On this the ____ day of _____, 20___, before me, personally appeared _____, who acknowledged himself/herself to be ______ in the above instrument, and that he/she, as such ______, being authorized so to do, executed the foregoing instrument for the purposes therein contained, by signing his/her name by himself/herself as

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I hereunto set my hand and official seal.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _____

V. INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

Review this section carefully with your insurance agent or broker prior to submitting a bid or proposal. See the Insurance Checklist (part of the Bid or Proposal Forms) for specific coverages applicable to this Contract. The term "Contract," as used in this section, shall mean the fully executed Agreement covering the work entered into between the County and the Contractor.

1. <u>General</u>

- 1.1 The Contractor shall provide insurance as specified in the Insurance Checklist found on the last page of the bid or proposal form.
- 1.2 The Contract with the Contractor will not be executed by the County until the Contractor has obtained, at its own expense, all of the insurance called for hereunder and such insurance has been approved by the County; additionally, the Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor to start work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the subcontractor has been so obtained and approved by the Contractor. The Contractor shall submit to the County Purchasing Agent copies of all required endorsements and documentation of coverage consistent with the requirements herein or, alternately, at the County's request, certified copies of the required insurance policies in compliance with the insurance requirements. All endorsements and documentation shall state this Contract's number and title.
- 1.3 The Contractor shall require all subcontractors to maintain during the term of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability insurance, Business Automobile Liability insurance, and Workers' Compensation, Employers' Liability insurance, or any other insurance required by the Contract in the same manner and form as specified for the Contractor. The Contractor shall furnish subcontractors' evidence of insurance and copies of endorsements to the County Purchasing Agent immediately upon request by the County and/or prior to the subcontractor's performance of work related to this Contract.
- 1.4 If there is a material change or reduction in coverage, nonrenewal of any insurance coverage or cancellation of any insurance coverage required by this contract, the Contractor shall notify the Purchasing Agent immediately. It is the Contractor's responsibility to notify the County upon receipt of a notice indicating that the policy will not be renewed or will be materially changed. Any policy on which the Contractor has received notification from an insurer that the policy has or will be cancelled or materially changed or reduced must be immediately replaced with another policy consistent with the terms of this Contract and in such a manner that there is no lapse in coverage, and the County immediately notified of the replacement. Not having the required insurance throughout the Contract is considered a material breach of this Contract and grounds for termination. The Contractor shall also obtain an endorsement providing to the County thirty (30) days advance notice of cancellation or nonrenewal (ten days for nonpayment of premium. A copy of that endorsement shall be provided to the County Purchasing Agent prior to the execution of this Contract or any Contract extension thereafter.
- 1.5 No acceptance and/or approval of any insurance by the County shall be construed as relieving or excusing the Contractor, any surety, or any bond, from any liability or obligation imposed under this Agreement.

1.6 Arlington County, and its officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, and agents are to be named as additional insureds under all coverages except Workers' Compensation, Professional Liability, and Automobile Liability, and the endorsement must clearly identify the County as an additional insured permitted to enjoy all the benefits under the applicable policy of insurance. The certified policy, if requested, must so state coverage afforded under this paragraph shall be primary as respects the County, its officers, elected and appointed officials, agents and employees. The following definition of the term "County" applies to all policies issued under the Contract and to all applicable endorsements:

"The County Board of Arlington County and any affiliated or subsidiary Board, Authority, Committee, or Independent Agency (including those newly constituted), provided that such affiliated or subsidiary Board, Authority, Committee, or Independent Agency is either a Body Politic created by the County Board of Arlington County, Virginia, or one in which controlling interest is vested in Arlington County; and Arlington County Constitutional Officers."

- 1.7 The Contractor shall be responsible for the work performed under the Contract Documents and every part thereof, and for all materials, tools, equipment, appliances, and property of any description used in connection with the work. The Contractor assumes all risks for direct and indirect damage or injury to the property or persons used or employed on or in connection with the Work contracted for, and of all damage or injury to any person or property wherever located, resulting from any action, omission, commission or operation under the Contract, or in connection in any way whatsoever with the contracted work.
- 1.8 The insurance coverage required shall remain in force throughout the Contract or as otherwise stated in the Contract Documents or these Insurance Requirements. If the Contractor fails to provide acceptable evidence of current insurance within seven (7) days of written notice at any time during the Contract, the County shall have the absolute right to terminate the Contract without any further obligation to the Contractor.
- 1.9 Contractual and other liability insurance provided under this Contract shall not contain a supervision, inspection or engineering services exclusion that would preclude the County from supervising or inspecting the work as to the end result. The Contractor shall assume all on-the-job responsibilities as to the control of persons directly employed by it and of the subcontractors and any persons employed by the subcontractor.
- 1.10 If any policy contains a warranty stating that coverage is null and void (or words to that effect) if the Contractor does not comply with the most stringent regulations governing the work, such policy shall be modified so that coverage shall be afforded in all cases except for the Contractor's willful or intentional noncompliance with applicable government regulations.
- 1.11 All policies shall include the following language: "The insolvency or bankruptcy of the insured or of the insured's estate will not relieve the insurance company of its obligations under this policy."
- 1.12 All policy forms must "Pay on behalf of" rather than "Indemnify" the insured.
- 1.13 Nothing contained in these Insurance Requirements or the Contract Documents shall be construed as creating any contractual relationship between any subcontractor and the County.

The Contractor shall be as fully responsible to the County for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons employed by them as it is for acts and omissions of persons directly employed by it.

- 1.14 Precaution shall be exercised by the Contractor at all times for the protection of persons, (including employees) and property. All existing structures, utilities, roads, services, trees and shrubbery shall be protected against damage or interruption of service at all times by the Contractor and its subcontractors during the term of the Contract, and the Contractor shall be held responsible for any damage to property occurring by reason of its work under the Contract.
- 1.15 For any claims related to this work, The Contractor's insurance shall be deemed primary and noncontributory to all other applicable coverage and in particular with respect to Arlington County, its representatives, officials, employees, and agents. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by Arlington County shall be excess and noncontributory of the Contractor's insurance. The Contractor shall waive its right of subrogation for all insurance claims.
- 1.16 If the Contractor does not meet the insurance requirements set forth by the Contract Documents, alternate insurance coverage or self-insurance, satisfactory to the Purchasing Agent, may be considered. Written requests for consideration of alternate coverages including the Contractor's most recent actuarial report and a copy of its self-insurance resolution to determine the adequacy of the insurance funding must be received by the County Purchasing Agent at least ten (10) working days prior to the date set for receipt of bids or proposals. If the County denies the request for alternate coverages, the specified coverages will be required to be submitted. If the County permits alternate coverage, an amendment to the Insurance Requirements will be prepared and distributed prior to the time and date set for receipt of bids or proposals.
- 1.17 All required insurance coverages must be acquired from insurers authorized to do business in the Commonwealth of Virginia and acceptable to the County. The insurers must also have a policyholders' with a rating of "A-VII" in the latest edition of the A.M. Best Co.'s Insurance Reports, unless the County grants specific approval for an exception, in the same manner as described in 1.16 above.
- 1.18 The Contractor shall be responsible for payment of any deductibles applicable to the coverages.
- 1.19 The Contractor must disclose the amount of any deductible or self-insurance component applicable to the General Liability, Automobile Liability, Professional Liability, Intellectual Property or any other policies, if any. The County reserves the right to request additional information to determine if the Contractor has the financial capacity to meet its obligations under a deductible. Thereafter, at its option, the County may require a lower deductible, funds equal to the deductible be placed in escrow, a certificate of self-insurance, collateral, or other mechanism in the amount of the deductible to ensure additional protection for the County.

2. <u>Contractor's Insurance:</u>

- 2.1 The Contractor shall purchase the following insurance coverages, including the terms, provisions and limits shown in the Insurance Checklist.
 - 2.1.1 Commercial General Liability Such Commercial General Liability policy shall include any or all of the following as indicated on the Checklist:

- i. General aggregate limit is to apply per project;
- ii Premises/Operations;
- iii. Actions of Independent Contractors;
- iv. Products/Completed Operations to be maintained for five (5) years after completion of the Work;
- v. Contractual Liability, including protection for the Contractor from claims arising out of liability assumed under this Contract;
- vi. Personal Injury Liability including, including but not limited to, coverage for offenses related to employment and copyright infringement;
- vii. Explosion, Collapse, or Underground (XCU) hazards.
- 2.1.2 Business Automobile Liability, including coverage for any owned, hired, or non-owned motor vehicles, Uninsured Motorists coverage, and automobile contractual liability.
- 2.1.3 Workers' Compensation statutory benefits as required by Virginia law or the U.S. Longshoremen's and Harbor Workers' Compensation Act, or other laws as required by labor union agreements, including standard Other States coverage; Employers' Liability coverage. The policy shall not contain any provision or definition which would serve to eliminate third party action over claims, including exclusion for bodily injury to an employee of the insured, employees of the premises owner, or employees of the general contractor to which the insured is subcontracted; or employees of the insured's subcontractor.
- 2.1.4 General Environmental Remediation Projects In addition to the Insurance Requirements specified in the general provision or elsewhere in the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall not commence work under this Contract until all insurance as required hereafter has been obtained, and certified copies, naming the County as an additional insured, of such insurance have been submitted and accepted by the Purchasing Agent.
 - i. An environmental remediation contractor or subcontractor shall be responsible for purchasing and maintaining Business Automobile Liability insurance and Workers' Compensation insurance as described in 2.1.2 and 2.1.3.
 - ii. Acceptance by Arlington County of insurance submitted by the Contractor does not relieve or decrease in any manner the liability of the Contractor for performance of environmental remediation Work under the Contract.
 - iii. The Contractor is responsible for any losses, claims, and costs of any kind, which exceed the Contractor's limits of liability, or which may be outside the coverage scope of the policies. The limits and coverage requirements may be revised at the option of the Arlington County Risk Manager. The requirements outlined

shall in no way be construed to limit or eliminate the liability of the Contractor, which arises from performance of work under the Contract.

- 2.1.5 Contractors Pollution Liability (CPL) Policy
 - Minimum liability limits required shall be \$1,000,000 Per Loss and \$2,000,000
 Total All Losses, including, but not limited to, property damage, bodily injury, loss of use, and clean-up costs.
 - ii. Limits must be dedicated to work performed under this Contract only, unless prior approval by the Arlington County Risk Manager has been obtained. The policy of insurance shall contain or be endorsed to include the following:
 - a. Pollution coverage as respects asbestos, lead, and PCB's.
 - b. "Covered Operations" designated by the CPL policy must specifically include all work performed under this contract. (This would include and not be limited to excavation, off-site incineration of soils, demolition, asbestos abatement, drum removal and disposal, in-situ vapor extraction, etc.) and exclusions or limitations affecting work performed under this contract must be deleted. (i.e., lead, asbestos, pollution, testing, underground storage tanks, radioactive matter, etc.)
 - c. Contractor must comply with all applicable DOT and EPA requirements.
 - d. Premises/Operations.
 - e. Broad form property damage.
 - f. Products/Completed Operations coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after Final Payment.
 - g. Contractual liability coverage in accordance with ISO policy form CG 00 01 11 85. Modifications to the standard provision will not be acceptable if they serve to reduce coverage.
 - h. Cross liability/severability of interest.
 - i. The scope of work and all related activities under this Contract shall be scheduled as "Covered Operations" under this policy.
 - j. Coverage is included on behalf of the insured for covered claims arising out of the actions of independent contractors. If insured is utilizing subcontractors, the CPL policy must use "By or On behalf of" language with regards to coverage.
 - k. Loading and unloading exclusions must be amended so as to include coverage for mobile equipment and automobiles.

- 2.1.6 Asbestos and Lead Based Paint Abatement Projects
 - i. Minimum Liability Limits shall be \$1,000,000 Per Occurrence and \$2,000,000 Aggregate. Limits must be dedicated to work performed under this Contract only, unless otherwise approved by the Arlington County Risk Manager. The policy shall be written with a minimum annual aggregate combined single limit for Bodily Injury and Property Damage as shown on the Insurance Checklist. This limit can be inclusive of defense costs.
 - ii. The policy of insurance shall contain or be endorsed to include the following:
 - a. Coverage for Asbestos/Lead-Based Paint Abatement operations as described in the contract. Specific lead endorsement evidencing this project must be provided, if applicable.
 - b. Pollution coverage as respects Asbestos/Lead-Based Paint for all phases of the abatement process.
 - c. Transportation coverage for the hauling of ACM/Lead-Based Paint from the project site to the final disposal location, as evidenced by the contractor or applicable waste hauler. Contractor must comply with all applicable D.O.T. regulations.
 - d. Premises/Operations.
 - e. Broad Form Property Damage.
 - f. Products/Completed Operations coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after project completion.
 - g. Contractual Liability coverage in accordance with ISO policy form CG 00 01 11 85. Modifications to the standard provision will not be acceptable if they serve to reduce coverage.
 - h. Cross Liability. Any "Insured vs. Insured" type language must be deleted or amended to "Named Insured vs. Named Insured."
 - i. The policy shall not exclude Asbestos/Lead Based Paint bodily injury to employees of Arlington County so long as their designated job duties do not require them to be in the regulated asbestos/lead based paint abatement area.
 - j. If the policy or any endorsement contains a provision which limits or eliminates bodily injury or property damage coverage based on final air fiber clearance levels, the policy shall be modified so that it is consistent with the clearing level (FCC) and the appropriate analytical testing protocol contained in the technical specifications.
 - k. Personal Injury.

- I. Independent Contractors.
- m. Hostile fire coverage is to be provided.
- 2.1.7 Environmental Impairment Liability, including coverage of insureds' on-site clean up, with the following minimum limits of liability:

Bodily Injury and Property	2,000,000 each occurrence
Damage Liability	4,000,000 annual aggregate

The County Board of Arlington County, Virginia, is to be named in Additional Name Insured or a Broad Form Contractual Endorsement may be added to the policy as respects any liability that may arise out of or result from the handling of Work on this Project including specifically but without limitation thereto, the indemnity provisions in the Agreement. Such policies will be endorsed to provide that they are primary to an insurance carried by the County Board of Arlington County, Virginia.

- 2.1.8 Should any of the Work hereunder involve the cleanup, remediation and/or removal of bio-solids, bio-hazards waste, or any hazardous or toxic materials, trash, debris, refuse, or waste, the Contractor shall provide, or shall require its subcontractor performing the work to provide, the following coverage in addition to the above requirements:
 - a) Environmental Liability and Cleanup Coverage with limits of not less than \$2,000,000 per occurrence.
 - b) Business Automobile Liability for transportation or regulated and/or hazardous waste, products, or materials with limits of not less than \$1,000,000, per occurrence. Said coverage shall include County as an additional insured and shall include both the MCS-90 and CA 9948 (or equivalent) endorsements, which shall be specifically referenced on the certificate of insurance.
- 2.2 The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions for the safety of, and shall provide all reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury or loss to, its employees on the job, and others. The Contractor shall comply with all applicable provisions of federal, state and municipal safety laws, insurance requirement's, standard industry practices, the requirements of the operations and this contract, the Contractor, directly through its subcontractors, shall effect and properly maintain at all times, as required by the conditions and progress of the work, necessary safeguards for safety and protection of the public, including securing areas, posting danger signs, placarding, labeling or posting other forms of warning against hazards.
- 3. Commercial General or other Liability Insurance Claims-made Basis:
- 3.1 If Commercial General or other liability insurance purchased by the Contractor has been issued on a claims-made basis, the Contractor must comply with the following additional conditions. The limits of liability and the extensions to be included as described in the Insurance Checklist remain the same. The Contractor must either:
 - i. Agree to provide insurance, copies of the endorsement and certified documentation evidencing the above coverages and naming the County as an additional insured for a period of five (5) years after final payment under the Contract. Such documentation shall evidence

a retroactive date, no later than the beginning of the Contractors or subcontractors' work under this Contract, or

ii. Purchase an extended (minimum five [5] years) reporting period endorsement for the policy or policies in force during the term of this Contract and evidence the purchase of this extended reporting period endorsement by means of a copy of the endorsement itself. The extended reporting period will begin upon final payment under the Contract.

4. Builder's Risk Insurance

- 4.1 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain builders risk insurance with a limit equal to the initial Contract Amount and any amendments to the Contract which affect the project cost on a replacement cost basis. Builder's risk insurance shall be maintained until Final Payment under the Contract has been made or until no person or entity other than the County has an insurable interest in the covered property, whichever is earlier. The builders risk insurance shall include the County as defined in Section 1.6, Contractor, subcontractors and sub-subcontractors as named insureds.
- 4.2 Insurance shall be on an all-risks policy form including the perils of fire, theft, vandalism, malicious mischief, lightning, wind, force majeure, collapse, and earthquake. Coverage is to apply for demolition occasioned by enforcement of any applicable legal requirements, and Architect's fees. Coverage for the peril of flood shall not be required unless otherwise required in the Contract Documents.
- 4.3 Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the builders risk insurance shall also cover materials to be incorporated into the project which are stored off the site.
- 4.4 The Contractor shall purchase and maintain Boiler and Machinery insurance, if required by the contract documents or by law, with a limit satisfactory to the County. The Boiler and Machinery insurance shall cover objects during installation and until Final Acceptance by the County. The County shall be included as a named insured.
- 4.5 Any loss under builder's risk insurance shall be payable to the County as fiduciary for the insureds, as their interests may appear, subject to any mortgagee clause. The Contractor shall pay subcontractors their just shares of insurance proceeds received by the Contractor, and by appropriate agreements, written where legally required for validity, shall require subcontractors to make payments to their sub-subcontractors in similar manner. The County, as fiduciary, shall have the right to adjust and settle a loss with insurers.
- 4.6 The insurance company providing the builders risk coverage shall grant permission for the County to partially occupy or use the premises under construction prior to final acceptance without removing or affecting the coverage.

VI. ATTACHMENTS AND FORMS

ARLINGTON COUNTY, VIRGINIA OFFICE OF THE PURCHASING AGENT

INVITATION TO BID NO. 21-DPR-ITB-467

BID FORM

ELECTRONIC BIDS WILL BE RECEIVED BY THE COUNTY VIA VENDOR REGISTRY NOT LATER THAN 1:00 P.M., MARCH 19, 2021.

FOR PROVIDING CONSTRUCTION SERVICES FOR TOWERS PARK PLAYGROUND RENOVATIONS IDENTIFIED HEREIN IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF THIS SOLICITATION

Project consists of all labor, materials, resources, and equipment for the construction services for Towers Park Playground Renovations. Complete Attachment A.

BASE LUMP SUM GRAND TOTAL \$_____

THE FULL <u>LEGAL NAME</u> OF THE ENTITY SUBMITTING THIS BID MUST BE WRITTEN IN THE SPACE BELOW. THIS BID FORM AND ALL OTHER DOCUMENTS THAT REQUIRE A SIGNATURE MUST BE FULLY AND ACCURATELY COMPLETED AND SIGNED BY A PERSON WHO IS AUTHORIZED TO BIND THE BIDDER, OR THE BID MAY BE REJECTED. SUBMITTED BY: (legal name of entity)									
AUTHORIZED SIGNATU	RE:								
PRINT NAME AND TITL	E:								
ADDRESS:									
CITY/STATE/ZIP:									
TELEPHONE NO.:		MAIL DDRESS	:						
THIS ENTITY IS INCORP	ORATED		-						
THIS ENTITY IS A: (check the applicable	CORPORATION			LIMITE	ED PART	NERSHIP			
option)	GENERAL PARTNERSHIP		UNINCO	RPORATE	ED ASSC	CIATION			
	LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY			SOLE P	ROPRIE	TORSHIP			
IS OFFEROR AUTHORIZ	ED TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN VIRGINIA?	I THE		YES		NO			

BID FORM, PAGE ____ OF ____

IDENTIFICATION NO. ISSUED TO THE ENTITY BY THE

SCC:

Any Offeror exempt from Virginia State Corporation Commission (SCC) authorization requirement must include a statement with its proposal explaining why it is not required to be so authorized.

VIRGINIA CONTRACTOR'S LICENSE NUMBER:								
ENTITY'S DUN & BRAD available)	STREET D-U-N-S NUM	1BER: (if						
HAS YOUR FIRM OR A FROM SUBMITTING VIRGINIA, OR ANY O WITHIN THE PAST THR	BIDS TO ARI THER STATE OR POL	LINGTON	COUNTY,	YES		NO		
HAS YOUR FIRM DEF THREE YEARS?	AULTED ON ANY PR	ROJECT IN	THE LAST	YES		NO		
HAS YOUR FIRM HAD A TRADE LICENSE, REGIS SUSPENDED IN THE PA	TRATION OR CERTIFIC	-		YES		NO		
HAS YOUR FIRM AND ITS PRINCIPALS/OWNERS BEEN CONVICTED OF ANY CRIME RELATING TO ITS CONTRACTING BUSINESS IN THE PAST TEN YEARS?								
HAS YOUR FIRM BEE APPLICABLE TO ITS CO TAX LAWS, WAGE AN ENVIRONMENTAL) WH THE PAYMENT OF A F PENALTY IN THE AMOU	DNTRACTING BUSINES D HOUR LAWS, PREV IERE THE RESULT OF S INE, BACK PAY DAMA	SS (LICENS AILING W/ UCH VIOLA AGES, OR A	ING LAWS, AGE LAWS, ATION WAS	YES		NO		
BIDDER STATUS:	MINORITY OWNED:		WOMAN OWNED:		NEIT	HER:		
The undersigned certifies that (Bidder Name)is currently registered with the Virginia State Board of Contractors as required by the Code of Virginia. Certificate								
Number The undersigned further been paid.							ave	
TIME LIMIT FOR PROJEC	CT: FINAL	COMPLET	ION – 210 CALEND	DAR DA	rs			
LIQUIDATED DAMAGES	: FINAL	COMPLET	ION - \$715.00 PER	DAY				

COMPLETE THE PRICING SHEET PROVIDED WITH THE BID DOCUMENTS AS ATTACHMENT A TO ITB NO. 21-DPR-ITB-467 AND SUBMIT IT IN EXCEL FORMAT WITH YOUR BID.

FAILURE TO SUBMIT THE PRICING SHEET WITH THE BID WILL DEEM THE BIDDER NONRESPONSIVE.

BID FORM, PAGE ____ OF ____

THE UNDERSIGNED UNDERSTANDS AND ACKNOWLEDGES THE FOLLOWING:

THE OFFICIAL COPY OF THE SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS, WHICH INCLUDES ANY ADDENDA, IS THE ELECTRONIC COPY THAT IS AVAILABLE ON THE <u>VENDOR REGISTRY WEBSITE</u>.

POTENTIAL BIDDERS ARE RESPONSIBLE FOR DETERMINING THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS OF ALL SOLICITATION DOCUMENTS THEY RECEIVE FROM ANY SOURCE, INCLUDING THE COUNTY.

The undersigned acknowledges receipt of the following Addenda:

ADDENDUM NO. 1	DATE:	_INITIAL:
ADDENDUM NO. 2	DATE:	_INITIAL:
ADDENDUM NO. 3	DATE:	INITIAL:

TRADE SECRETS OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION:

Trade secrets or proprietary information submitted by a Bidder in connection with a procurement transaction will not be subject to public disclosure under the Virginia Freedom of Information Act. Pursuant to Section 4-111 of the Arlington County Purchasing Resolution, however, a Bidder seeking to protect submitted data or materials from disclosure must, before or upon submission of the data or materials, identify the data or materials to be protected and state the reasons why protection is necessary.

Please mark one:

- □ No, the bid that I have submitted does <u>not</u> contain any trade secrets and/or proprietary information.
- □ Yes, the bid that I have submitted <u>does</u> contain trade secrets and/or proprietary information.

If Yes, you must clearly identify below the exact data or materials to be protected <u>and</u> list all applicable page numbers, sections, and paragraphs, of the bid that contain such data or materials:



State the specific reason(s) why protection is necessary and why the identified information constitutes a trade secret or is proprietary:

If you fail above to identify the data or materials to be protected or to state the reason(s) why protection is necessary, you will not have invoked the protection of Section 4-111 of the Purchasing Resolution. Accordingly, upon the award of a contract, the bid will be open for public inspection consistent with applicable law.

<u>CERTIFICATION OF NON-COLLUSION</u>: The undersigned certifies that this proposal is not the result of or affected by (1) any act of collusion with another person engaged in the same line of business or commerce (as defined in Virginia Code §§ 59.1-68.6 *et seq.*) or (2) any act of fraud punishable under the Virginia Governmental Frauds Act (Virginia Code §§ 18.2-498.1 *et seq.*).

CONTACT PERSON AND MAILING ADDRESS FOR DELIVERY OF NOTICES

Provide the name and address of the person who is designated to receive notices and other communications regarding this solicitation. Refer to the "Notices" section in the draft Contract Terms and Conditions for information regarding delivery of notices.

NAME:

ADDRESS:

E-MAIL:

BIDDER NAME: _____

REFERENCES

Bidders should provide three (3) references for similar goods that have been provided by the Bidder within the past five (5) years. The County reserves the right to evaluate the quality of Contractor's work through site visits with Contractor's references.

REFERENCE 1:	Contact Name:
	Organization:
	Phone Number:
	E-mail Address:
	Contract/Project Name:
	Contract/Project Dates (from-to):
	Contract/Project Description:
REFERENCE 2:	Contact Name:
	Organization:
	Phone Number:
	E-mail Address:
	Contract/Project Name:
	Contract/Project Dates (from-to):
	Contract/Project Description:
REFERENCE 3:	Contact Name:
	Organization:
	Phone Number:
	E-mail Address:
	Contract/Project Name:
	Contract/Project Dates (from-to):
	Contract/Project Description:

INSURANCE CHECKLIST

CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE MUST SHOW ALL COVERAGE AND ENDORSEMENTS MARKED "X".

COVERAGES REQUIRED	LIMITS (FIGURES DENOTE MINIMUMS)
X 1. Workers' Compensation	
X_2. Employer's Liability	
X_3.Commercial General Liability	
X_4. Premises/Operations	
X_5. Automobile Liability	\$1 Million BI/PD each accident, Uninsured Motorist
X 6. Owned/Hired/Non-Owned Vehicles	
X 7. Independent Contractors	\$1 Million CSL BI/PD each occurrence, \$1 Million annual aggregate
X 8. Products Liability	\$1 Million CSL BI/PD each occurrence, \$1 Million annual aggregate
X_9.CompletedOperations	\$1 Million CSL BI/PD eachoccurrence, \$1 Million annual aggregate
X 10. Contractual Liability (Must be shown on Certificate)	
X 11. Personal and Advertising Injury Liability	\$1 Million each offense, \$1 Million annual aggregate
X 12. Umbrella Excess Liability	
X 13. Per Project Aggregate	
14. Professional Liability	
a. Architects and Engineers	\$1 Millionper occurrence/claim
b. Asbestos Removal Liability	\$2 Million per occurrence/claim
	\$1Millionper occurrence/claim
	\$1 Million per occurrence/claim
15.MiscellaneousE&O/ Professional Liability	\$1 Million peroccurrence/claim
16. Motor Carrier Act End. (MCS-90)	\$1 Million BI/PD each accident, Uninsured Motorist
17. Motor Cargo Insurance	
19. Garagekeepers Liability	\$500,000 Comprehensive, \$500,000 Collision
20. Inland Marine-Bailee's Insurance	\$
21. Moving and Rigging Floater	Endorsement to CGL
22. Dishonesty Bond	Ś
X 23.Builder'sRisk	
24.XCUCoverage	•
X 26. Carrier Rating shall be Best's Rating of A-VII or better or its equiva	•
X 27. Notice of Cancellation, nonrenewal or material change in coverage sh	all be provided to County at least thirty (30) days prior to action.
X 28. The County shall be named Additional Insured on all policies excep	t Workers Compensation, Errors and Omissions/Professional Liability
and Auto.	
X 29. Certificate of Insurance shall show Bid Number and Bid Title.	
30. Environmental Impairment Liability, including coverage of on-site cle	
a In addition to environmental impairment liability, if work requires	•••
waste, and any hazardous or toxic material via transportation rec	quest:
BusinessAutoLiability \$2 Million peroccurrence with MCS	-90and CA9948 (or equivalent endorsements specifically
referenced in the certificate of insurance	
31. Cyber insurance	
32. OTHER INSURANCE REQUIRED:	
INSURANCE AGENT'S STATEMENT:	
I have reviewed the above requirements with the bidder named below	wand have advised the hidder of required coverages not
provided through this agency.	wand have advised the bloder of required coverages not
provided through this agency.	
AGENCY NAME: AUTH.	SIGNATURE:
BIDDER'S STATEMENT:	
If awarded the contract, I will comply with contract insurance requireme	nts.
	SIGNATURE
BIDDERNAME: AUTH.	SIGNATURE: